STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Q 5

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Lori A, Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-9544 1-800-851-3345 Ext.(044-
Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Katja S. Fox . .
Diréctor

May 19, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House .

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

EQUE D 0

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Heath,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with NFI North, Inc. (VC#177575-
B0O1), Contoocook, NH, for-the continued operational support for a sixteen-bed transitional
housing for community mental health services eligible adults in accordance with NH
Administrative Rule He-M 400, by exercising a contract. renewal option by increasing the price
limitation by $1,985,246 from $3,299,847 to $5,285,093 and extending the completion date from
June 30, 2025, to June 30, 2026, effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on December 20, 2023, item
#32B:

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2026,
upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal
years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-092-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV., BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES
CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

State | Increased .
Fiscal AC""‘SS’ .| ClassTite | JobNumber Current (Decreased) Revised
Year ceoun _ d Amount 9 _
Contracts for
| 2024 1 02-500731 Prog Svc 92204117 ‘$1 314,601 $0 $1,314,601
Contracts for 4
2025 | 102-500731 Prog Sve 92204117 $1,985,246 $0 $1,985,246
Contracts for \ ‘
2Q26 102-5007 31 Prog Svc 92204117 $0 $1,085,248 $1 ,985,246
Total $3,299,847 '$1,985,246 $5,285,093




Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The request is to.continue these
services while a competitive solicitation is developed and issued. The Contractor was initially
selected due to their specialized expertise with individuals with SMI (serious mental illness} and
existing presence on the State Office Park South (SOPS) campus. As the only provider of transitional
housing in the State, they have a proven track record of high-quality services with the goal of
transitioning people out of New Hampshire Hospital (NHH) to lower levels of care. Currently, the
Contractor has leadership staff operating out of the Howard Recreational Building and manages five
(5) transitional housing programs on the SOPS campus.

The purpose of this request is to exercise an available contract renewal option, allowing the
Contractor to maintain the sixteen-bed transitional housing program for adults eligible for community
mental health services under NH Administrative Rule He-M 400, Part 401 within the Department-
owned Philbrook building. The program has maintained full occupancy since August 2024. As of
January 14, 2025, the program has served twenty-one (21} individuals with an average length of stay
of 172 days. Approximately sixteen (16) individuals will be served annually.

The Contractor will continue offering housing and rehabilitative mental health services and supports.
Transitional housing provides a structured, supportive environment for people who need stability
before moving to more independent living situations. Individuals leaving NHH and DRFs (Designated.
Receiving Facilities) may not be ready to immediately transition to fully independent housing. They
‘may require ongoing support, including therapy, targeted case management, medication
management, and skill-building to help them reintegrate successfully into the community.
Additionally, the Contractor will provide guidance and support to help clients develop and maintain
basic ‘daily living skills and community engagement. This includes decision-making, budgeting,
commerce, household chores and responsibilities, and access to a wide range of integrated
community activities.

The Department will monitor services by requiring the Contractor to maintain detailed client
records as required by He-M 400, Part 408 and submit data necessary to comply with federal
reporting requirements.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is
exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals discharged from New
Hampshire Hospital could face challenges such as homelessness, lack of access to necessary
mental health care, or increased risk of needing acute services. These programs help bridge the
gap, offering a safe place where residents can receive rehabilitative services, learn essential life
skills, and gradually build the stability needed for independent living.

Respecjiglly supmiied,
/(& !% |
, Lori A Weaver
Commissioner

Area served: Statewide.

The Depal'tment of Health and Human Seruices'Missiol 1 is to join communities a, [d families
m prouiding opportunities for citizens .0 achieue health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1

This Amendmenttto the Transitional Housing: Program contract is by and between the Staté of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services {("State" or "Department”) and NFI North, Inc. ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on December 20, 2023 (ltem #32B), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
~agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
- in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1.

Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7., Completion Dafe, to read:
June 30, 2026

Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation, to read:
$5,285,093 -

Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 3.4 to read:

3.4. For individuals without health insurance or other coverage for the services they receive and
for operational costs contained in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-3, Budget Sheet —
Amendment #1 for which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek reimbursement from an
insurance or third-party payer, the Contractor will directly bill the Department to access
contract funds provided through the Agreement.

Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4., to read:

4.  Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-3, Budget Sheet — Amendment #1.

Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 6, to read:
6. Inlieu of hard copies, all invoiced may be assigned an eléctronic signature and e-mailed to

housingsupportsinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov, or mailed to:

Financial Manager

Depariment of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301
Add Exhibit C-3, Budget Sheet — Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Indtial
| | R
NFI North, Inc. ’ Contractor Initials

$5-2024-DBH-33-HOUSI-01-A01 Page 1 of 3 Date®/9/2025

v7i12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

- DocuSigned by:

5/9/2025 : Katja S, Fax

“— EDODOSBO4CEIAZ...
Date NameXatja s. Fox
Title: pi rector

NFI North, Inc.

. Signed by:
s/0/2025 E_UKE REYNARD
C692D0284010430..,
Date Name: LUKE REYNARD
Title: ED .
NFI North, Inc. A-8-1.3
$8-2024-DBH-33-HOUSI-01-A-1 Page 2 of 3

v, 7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSignad by:
5/9/2025 Eﬁoﬂm Gunsins

748734844944460...

Date. . Name: Robyn Guarino
Title:attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting})

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date" B Name:
: Title:
" NFI North, Inc. A-813
$5-2024-DBH-33-HOUSI-01-A-1 Page 3 of 3

v. 7.12.23
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$8-2024-DBH-33-HOUSI-01-A01

Exhibit C-3, Budget Sheet — Amendment #1

. New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

_ Contractor Name: |NEI:N¢

Budget Request for:|Tr

Budget Period|¢

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)|¥

1. Salary & Wages
2. Fringe Benefits
3. Consultants

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational

5.(b) Supplies - Lab

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy

5.(d) Supplies - Medical

5.(e) Supplies Office

6. Travel

7. Software

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications

8. (b) Other - Education and Training

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Insurances

Occupancy Costs

Telecommunication

Other Fees, Dues, Licenses etc,

9. Subrecipient Contracts

Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs

3 '$219,703:

TOTAL

-$1,684,387:

Contractor Initials:

|LR

Date:

5/9/2025
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the-State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NFINORTH, INC; i3 a New
Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hanpshire on July 06, 1992, 1 further certify that all fees
and docurnents required by the Sccrétary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as fav as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 175745 .
Certificate Number: 0007039671

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I'hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 3rd day of February A.D. 2023,

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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State of New Hampshlre

Department of State
2025 NONPROFIT REPORT

Filed
Date Filed: 2/3/2025
Effective Date: 2/3/2025
Business IDx: 175745
David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State

BUSINESS NAME: NFINORTH, INC.

BUSINESS TYPE: Domestic Nonprofit Corporation

BUSINESS ID: 175745

STATE OF INCORPORATION: New Hampshire

40 Park Lane
Contoocook, NH, 03229, USA

PO Box 417
Contoocook, NH, 03229, USA

NAICS CODE

NAICS SUB CODE

OTHER / OPERATING GROUP HOMES FOR TROUBLED
YOUTH OR PERSONS WITH MENTAL ILLNESS.

OFFICER / DIRECTOR INFORMAT[ON

NAME

" BUSINESS ADDRESS TITLE
Patricia Fillio 1 Qualier Street, Newton, NH, 03858, USA President
‘Delliec Champagne 169 Portsmouth St, #177, Concord, NH, 03301, USA Sceretary
Ashley Wainwright 240 Oak Street, Lewiston, ME, 04240, USA Treasurer
Don Nason 117 Brockway Rd, Hopkinton, NH, 03229, USA Director
Sophia Grebe 58 Highland Avenue, Newton, MA, 02460, USA Director
Suanne Nader 27 Sherwood Road, Londonderry, NH, 03053, USA Director
Terry Lochhead 147 Main Street, Brownfield, ME, 04010, USA Director

Title: President

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the statements on this report are true to the best of my information, knowledge and belief.

Signature: Patricia Fillio

Name of Signer: Patricia Fillio

Mailing Address - Corporation Division, NH Department of State, 107 North Main Street, Room 204, Concord, NH 03301-4989
Physical Location - State House Annex, 3rd Floor, Room 317, 25 Capitol Street, Concord, NH
Phane: (603)271-3246 | Fax: (603)271-3247 | Email: corporate@sos.nh.gov | Website: sos.nh.gov




Docusign Envelope ID: B8798957-146C-4609-B87B-8925DEFQOF 97

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

|, _Dellie Champagne - — hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLGC; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officerof ___ NFI North, Ing. :
: (Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a mesting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _March 31, 2025, at which @'quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting. -
{Date)

VOTED: __ Luke Reynard, Executive Director or Jill Allen, COO ____{may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory) )

is duly authorized on behalf of _NF| North, Inc. _____ toenter into contracts or agreements with the State
) (Name of Corporation/. LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereta, which may in hisfher
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote Has hot been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment t& which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and rerains. valid for thirty (30) days frofmithe date of this Certificate of Authority.  further certify.
that it is understood that thé State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed
above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have: full authority to bind the corporation, To the
extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with

the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Signature of Elected Qjficer
Name: Dellie Champagne
Title: Clerk/Secretary

"

Dated:

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD.

NORTHAMET76

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)
12130/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. .
© If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USl Insurance Services LLC
12 GIll Street Suite 5500
Woburn, MA 01801

CONTACT
NAME:

Susan Kania

(NC No, Ext): 855 874-0123

FAX
{AC, No):

781-376-5035

EMAL <. Susan.Kania@usl.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
855 874-0123 INSURER A ; Philadelphta Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058
INSURED INSURER B : North River Insurance Company 21105
NFI North Inc.
INSURER € :
40 Park Lane
INSURER D :
Contoocook, NH 03229
INSURERE :
INSURER F.:
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE PCLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY' REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED EY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

iR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDLISUBK] POLICY NUMBER (MDA Y ) (DO FYY) LIMITS
A | X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK2638415021 01/01/2025|01/01/2026| EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
| cLams Maze OCGUR B IR TEe ey |$1,000,000
] MED EXP {Any one person) 35,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
ENL AGGREGATE LIMIT AFPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 33,000,000
|| Pouey |:| e |:| Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $3,000,000
QTHER: ‘ $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2638417021 01/01/2025|01/01/2026] 5 acteany ot SMIT 141,000,000
X| any auto BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
: gm%ESDONLY ﬁg;'ggULED BODILY INJURY (Per accidant) | $
x| owr [ Sh00ES R s
] $
A | X|UMBRELLALAB | ¥ | occur PHUB894574 01/01/2025| 01/01/2026 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $10,000,000
DED | Xl‘RErENTlON$10000 $
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION. 4067404992 07/01/2024(07/01/2025 X [Fre [ [T
AI#FIEE%I:&IFA'E%F%IEQEIBEDREIEXECUTIVE\E NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 31,000,000
{(Mandatory in NH) EL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| 51,000,000
¥ yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LmiT | 51,000,000
A |Professional PHPK2638415021 01/01/2025|01/01/2026{ 1MIL/3MIL
‘[Abuse PHPK2638415021 01/01/2025|01/02/2026 1MIL/3Mil

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIOQNS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required}
121 South Fruit Street Concord, NH 03301.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

Dept Health & Human Services;

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFQRE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

T

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of1
#547610579/M47595574

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are reglstered marks of ACORD

VMMZP
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NFI North Mission Statement

Inspiring and empowering people to reach their full
potential so that they can live successfully within their
own home and community
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NFINORTH, INC,
TABLE OF CONTENTS
YEAR END JUNE 340, 12024

INDEPENDENTAUDITORS' REPORT ’ T

.
.

’ ,’.STATEMENTOFFINANCIALPOSITION EPE

\ : STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES C T ’ e
@ _-;"‘"‘ STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES . = 7
‘:;i . 7 ’* . TE
‘ STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS . :
| NOTES 7O, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . Cae e o

: " INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER '~
. . *  FINANCIAL REPORTING'AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS .. - D
o .7 '57 .. BASEDON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMEDIN = . s

-
Al

LI ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS T )
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L Board ‘of D:rectors b o g @ " o R e
. © NF) North, Inc.. T S,

. Contoocook New Hampshire : o oL -

. ?._ PREES Eo e o Tt C S ¥ ) ‘f: - ! . Hp\‘:;‘i i T

7 * : Report on the Audlt of the Financial Statements, ° : _:'»\_*‘;5 L

T Opm.'on . 4 G T . e ':,‘-: .:""-.
I i ‘We have audited the accompanymg fnanclal statements of NF[ North Inc whlch comprise the . ~
. _statemént of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the related Statements of activities, functional '

expenses, and cash ﬂows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the ﬁnanma] statements. .

Iri"o'or opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the =
2w g finangial position of NFI North,.Inc. as of June 30, 2024, and the changes'in its net assets.and its cash "‘a
v . flows for'the year then ended in accordance with accountlng prmcrples generally accepted in the Unlted .

. States of America. ., - ‘ PR o -.*_a::' .-
v Bas:s for Oprmon - i ' “- P el I o ’ LN
L ) We conducted our audit in accordance wuth audntlng standards generally accepted in the United States o N i
Y. of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing

Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United- States. Our,respensibilities under those |
- standards ‘are:.further deseribed in’ the Auditors’ Responsrb;httes for the Audit of the Financial' -, )
< Statements section of our repart. We are required- 1o be mdependent of NFi North; Inc. and to'meet our - .
S other eliical responsmalltles in accardance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to, our audit: ~.  *

L We belleve that. the audit ewdence we have obtamed is sufficient and appropnate to provude a basis for’

sae 4 ouraudit oplnlon : ) , . : CT
L -__.b ..k,., . L e - - . WL . "‘.::u ;",';-!
\ j,"'. ' i_.‘ Respons:bmtfes of. Management for the Fmancral Statemenrs ' -
' ;, Management is responsible for the preparatlon and fair presentatlon of thé fmancual statements m
. accordance’ with accounting principles generally accepted in-the United States of America, and for t_he e
design, implementation, and, maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair .
* .- presentation of financial stateménts that are free from material mlsstatement whether due to fraud or Ty
arror, -’ , .. . v
in prep‘aring the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions ) )
or events, considered in-the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about NFI North, In¢.’s ability to .
- continue as a going concern for one year after the date the fi nanc1a| statements are available to be.
, |SSU€d ’-:‘ o ‘v,!-"" . _,_':\.‘. 2, Lo , : : Yo, B .y’:‘ .
. " & £y ¢ [ L. .‘ . ““ -\ H : _;"i'.! "L k3 '- l!* i
i TR B T T R E
* A M M AT '--‘“‘;Q“,;":‘_ T e L o i ey i
Itf!ihonLarsonAIlen Ll.f’)!sanlndependentnetworkmen\be: ofClA Global See;l.kglobal,;gmﬂqglgzmg W ' piee . ERALIEES I T
R ‘ Pl 0 .-...-;;._;;; b s v

LN :t,. SRS
. T 4 - - -

LS ‘\1!4 ¥
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i o= i L
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R L = : e
. ..Audrtors Responsrbrhtres for the Audrt of the Fmam:rafSiatements ot j-;“ Jee W,

a ?
.k . st = : -

SRR ]

- our ob;ectwes are to obtain reasonable assurance.aboutavkether the fi nancual statements’ as a whole
are free from material mlsstatement whether due to fraud-orierror,.and {0 issue-an auditors' report that

ER

E mctudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance’is a high4eve! of assurance but is not absolute assurance

cand thereforeis not a “guarantee that an-audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and. Government
Audrtmg Standards will always detect.a material misstatement when it exists. The risk. of not detecting a
e materla! mlsstatement résuiting from fraud is h!gher than for one-resulting from erfor, as fraud may

involve colIusron forgery, ‘intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of mternal control.

Misstatéments are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would.influence. the judgment made by .a reasonable user .based on the financial
Lo statements G e A e oo W o

. . s o ‘,- - oS §
-
* oy

. 5

' -ln‘ perform_ing.an "au'dit'in accordance with GA:AS' ahd'Go_uernméht,Auditt’ng Standards; we;,

" . a
= R "

%

' ; -y

2 i P . Exercise professnonal judgment and mairitain professuonal skeptac:sm throughout the audit.
S Identlty and assess the risks of matena! misstatement of the t"nanmal statements, whether due
2 - »to fraud or error, -and design and-perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and dtsctosures
W tn the fi nanmat statements ; . .

P A

¥ { 2 . 5
4y woi, v n,n . -yc P +* y d s l .

P ;“,, L 2 “Evaliate the appropnateness of accounting pohcres used and the reasonableness of-significant

Obtam an understandlng of mternal controi re{evant to the audit in. order to desngn audlt
: procedures that are appropriate in the crrcumstances but not for the purpose of expressmg an
< .opinion on the effectiveness of NEI North, Inc s mternal control. Accordlngly. no such opinion is
« ..,..-expressed L S \ . . .

- ¥ . LA
,.l‘..v 4 l' . * . . ha

: *I‘Z‘_ii ‘accounting estimates made by management ‘as, well as evatuate the overall presentatlon of the
e fnancral statements L e @ ; ; . '

B
¥ = -

s

. - v . e v
. . ; : W g R oF
N " . He - . 1 ot £

Conclude whether in our judgment, there are condttlons or events consrdered in the' aggregate

reasonabie perlod of tlme . .

v
B g ‘. g

iy 3 = - - 3 L
_t N ’

. We are reqmred to commumcate wrth those charged with governance regard:ng, among other matters
the planned scope and timing of the-audit, significant audit ﬁndings and certain internal control related
an matters that we identified durlng the audit. . . . - -

c

. = . .that raise substantial doubt about NFI North, Inc 's. abrhty to-continue as a gomg concern fora ~:

EY
[]
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woa ~ OtherReporting Required by GovernmentAudirmg-Smn‘dards S T IR LR
- " I accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we hayé:alsg isswed our report dated September’ ™ « ™"
v e =+ 30, 2024, on our consideration of NFI. North, Inc.is internal control over<financial reporting and on 6ur . -
., UL testsiof its compliance with certain provisicns iof Ia_ws,‘reg;:ilaiions,-muﬂmcl:s; and grant agreementsand - &
a7 = other matters. The purpose of that report-is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control O,
= .. ‘over financial reporting and compliance and-the iresults ofthatitesting;and not tg provide an opinionon ™, -+ + +«
Loy theeffectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s internal-control over fivancialweporting or on conipliance. That T
- 77 report is'an integral part of an audit performed with Government.Auditing Standards in considering NF|  ~ ",
i ‘Ndrth, Inc.’s internal control over financial feporting and comgliance.” .. A . o
. 5 * . we’ . * ‘!* " f ! N h4 . ¥ )
s 1. . O I . ;; L i ' ' "fzg'*;r"‘, e ,:" Yo f «'; 'n,"mf"'!:4 i o ll‘_
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP. -~ I O ' ’
- "+ Boston, Massadchusetts L T T ST ., L e -
i 4t September 30, 2024 S T T T
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_NFINORTH; INC.. #.- ,
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION .
Y. JUNE 30,2024 . %

; -~ Current assets: i L.
Cash and equivalents . o ‘
* Accounts receivable, net, . “ )
. Prepaid expenses and other current asséts
o Due from affiliate (note 10) L .
i "Investments (note 4)° o ’ S s '
W .7 3. Totalcurrentassets ' . P AR
G . S A .
" Propertyand equipment: © - s P
) 0 land® TP ‘ K i T
: .Buildings aind improvements =~ . . T -,
i _Eguipment and fumishings [ L . .7 -
- Vehicles - oo L R A
N - __* - Lal o . =N
o & I Less dccumutated depreciation . R e .
o Property and eqmpment net v
col e ‘ st
;.. Lease right-of-use assets - - A
- Other assets | ,oL L
o i - ] o "
c , Tolalassets -+ % ¢ Lo T .
: - . e E . ‘ b _'_ - '
e o - Liabilities and Net Assets -~ " ° =~
) P - . L .k
e L Current Itablllt:es o . A o .
LT - Curfent portion of long-term debt (note 5)  ° o e
i _' .+ Clrrent  portion of operating lease liabilities’ {note 6) RO

Accounts payablé : .ot
Accrued payrall and related liabilities _
. ' Other accrued expenses - )
' Deferred revenue o ™
_ Total current fiabilities - ' ) ‘.

‘ swomr s o . B N
*E - ; . - .
. . _ ¢ = . * v

- Ty

! Long-term liabilities: I Tl

Long-term debt, net of current portion_(note 5)

Operating l2ase liabilities, net of current portion (note g . T,
.Total long-term liabilities ; . :

W 1

-
-

Total liabilities

N Net assets: :

« - Without donor reslnctnons e T ) SRR .
ey * With'donor restrictions ' "¢ s
N Tolal netassets.. . - . )

e - ,t LS [ 34

.4

Total llabllltles and net assels ..

Il r'__.,.

7116823
[ 74389210 7
193,479 .
172,742 T v
5,193,750 -
20,115,715

. % -

= EE o

w4, 974781 0 -
o 12922227
¢ 882,329,

. . T Ts408.837

Lo L (I743454) . e
. ., 8,662,383 )
e eratr YL
Lot Y omao7a

.. . 8 29127488 - " |

*‘ : =, — } = ) .
4. el .‘ 1 :4’5 w tat

¥ . " * ‘:‘ - o

- 182,899, v v
L 3371 p
Lo VR 207,997y, ¢
" 2,086241 0 s
LT TR 71960838 ¢, .

PR 4,680,810 oo
N T 2,352,754
. 33,245
v . 2385890
o wlaor 21897715,
¢ .. " 362965 av
Lt .+ 22,060,680 -
v;'.!'i P
o Nt T
N, " 5
; ". .
f’ de B .
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X B .. NFINORTH, INC. . - ]
. + i STATEMENT OF ACTIVITlES -
L . YEAR ENDJUNE 30,2024 - -~ '
! 3 i Gk ) -
i e . . '.‘ R : -
' ,Changes in net assets without donor restnctlons o Sl
-Revenues and other support: - LR
‘Conlracts, net - . ' A e . e
. - Contributions: . . - T " L N i
R © ' “Contributed nonf nancial assets A T S ", - 1,154,633 .

: : Other s . S Ty 2 - B
;7% Interestand dividends ¢ -, . Lk ! W wt % so2708° . T
R Mlsceiianeous . - o, e e N A A44 .
: ' T " Net assets réleased from restrictions . i W - L 162,611 oyl

e i "+ Tolal revenues and other support R i t i ' 47,213,378 . )

‘ Expenses . , an e "w‘,_- S N oA .o T
" Program sefvices . ni : T .’ 40245200 - - -

, Supporting services . " y . . 4487,311 . ‘
AR Total expenses - - : - | T wTmET 2

L < i ST e ) : '. # “' - *
’ el Increase in net assets without donor restrrctlons before nonoperatrng activities i 12,480,857 *
N 5 Nonoperatmg actlvmes ] ' o - . o
IS Nét realized and unrealized gain oninvestments , . ¢ e 319 447
# Gain on sale of property and equipment  : ,~ _— oo i . " 54:810° .
.| A 4 . B3 ¥ _— & -
oL, UL Increase in net asseis wuthout donorrestnctaons i c e - 2,854,924 o
" =, Changesin net assels with- donor restrictions: . ! . ' v, s
- M Contnbut:ons ‘and grants . o ’ - 162,927 .
- et [ . . w7 g
f ‘ Net assets released from restrictions .. . Coor LT Ry (162 611)
re : z I S e 2T T DA S N R & A w
’ At “ Increase ih net as_se'ls with donor restrictions” ™« - * . =0t 310
. R . . 2" ) LA T , ; ) - . X [ B . % . v
L A Increase.ln net assets o T e e g YL sl 2,855,234
PR E o A ’ . % Ay Foonf : N . .

. v Net assets at beginning of year * ... - e 19,205,448 '

L P . BRTRT IR W
L -:‘- : Lo . L o . [ N .’ - . 5 O . ‘*‘, .
- " * . - -
Net assets at end of year - o $ 22,060,680
o . . P = v v * * * o ¥
" '
BT % 4 @ . * .. h 3 #
- »
= - « £ - .
. * - ‘ '
=i i - i
]
. ] - -
- T *
* < ¢ <
» 1 R
. .
. .
g N . -
' * - - * Y
¥ 3 1 % . A .
' ‘ f ! * ) v a5
" . f T .
L $ H
: P
N T * Cl P '
- R ¢ .t A
5, E : . D . EH
, AL, o
* "t ; .‘)"‘ Sim %.I[;*'..i‘ : et c .
Y B} J ey 8 . T
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NFI NORTH INC

1.

. YEAR END JUN.EEB,M

g W
i3 o
s : W
- - »
w - o i
- »
a

Personnel expenses

.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL: EXPENSES

.""_‘Salari'e's payroll taxes. and empfoyee benefits -

- 2116 686+
F B L
Otherexpenses R TR e ) R
o Contracted services - - C27F L AB3IBT21 7 T 1,868,632 6,404,153.
o Other direct costs » ~ LBT9820 ' 268483 2,148,303
Contributed nonfinancial assets e ?54;63'3 R - 1,154,833 .7
+ 7% - Consumables T T 1,049,959 " - S« * 1,049,959 . ,
% fex. n Oécupancy e ...+ 953240 . 49814 .. 1003054 7}
‘ . . _Transportation - T T et 799,099 Ly -49,300 -, 848489 .
- Equipment . ) e 248807 . L 51,4310 . 298,038
Iritere,st Ny VEIB16 ~-10,745 "r .t - 98,261
r G N 10 706,395~ i+ - 2,298,495,

. 917,433 "

72,130

-13,004,890  +.
989,563

§ 40245200

$

- 4,487,311

Kl

$ 44732511 -
—
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Nel cash prowded by operalmg actmtnes

R R

S R - L i;:"_‘i.,-“r

' Cash ﬂows from rnveshng activities: R D "I
=" % Purchases of property and equipment FL e
Purchases of investments .* Lol TR
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment "+ -,

Proceeds from sale of mveslmenls o Y

u

~Net cash used | :n mvestlng actmtles

* v‘ I I T.
,Cash ﬂows from fi nancmg actuwtles o
REDayments oflong'term debt’ - -

qcompan ymg Nofes ro Fmancra! Srarements

C Net cash used in fi nancing activilies _, -
et , . . . .:
LT ’n’ 'Y - . . A n‘. :I i :
‘Netdecrease in 'cash and equivalents %
ﬂ; w{.".’ “ Ty ’V} -,:" : - ' & " o P
i Cash and equwalents al begznmng of year e R
& Cash and equivalents at end of year '
.. Supplémental data: ‘ . '
- . Cash paid for inlerest '
" [ ‘ . K * . .
. .= F ,__g .. v . , :'r.
+ o ' : b E :"
iy "?‘i:i v
1. },:f _"". ":.__J‘

By

x NFI-NORTH, mc Ca P tat
" $TATEMENT OF.CASH FLOWS v L
S o YEAR: END,,mNEsn 2024 o
e Cash flows from operating activities: . © v . -(.;{ RRFEC T w TR TE L
lncrease in net assets o7 T S $ 2 855 234 co i
Adjustmenls to reconcile increase in net assetsieneimsh TS L T SEegta
* provided by operating‘activities: -~ . R -'~i . S f“ ._ . *
, ; Depreciation and amortization - e T T . ¢ - 989,563
Gain on sale of property and equment S R T (461000
', Net realized and ynrealized gain on investment - * & .7 " Lo, (319 447) R
Amortization of right-of-use asset . b i S 60,832 .
.+ .« Changes in assets and liabilies: + 5. v ", Yl -
#»  Accounls receivable, net - <. +(2.480,748) -7,
Prepaid expenses .and other current assets ™ ) . . (2,967) )
Due from affiliate - . LR e Yoy (172,742) ¢
Otherassets  ~ ; . " N YL . ... v {47080y
s - Accounts payable - BT w7 (3sa80y T
Accrued payroll and related liabilities - ° A 345231 0 T
Other accrued expenses L -k -, 830,530
Duetoaffiate  * S S (60,422)
- Deferred revenue . . o, . L ‘ 134736 o
'+ Operating lease liabilities S aen I (56,249) v

. 1986681 -

! " : [
. #
i . LS « . + »
ot e ¥ - #" . _f
4 e

(3313494)‘ o
1, TT T (1,487,466) T

- % 85800- - oL

e 1351024 - .
Lo AP {3.394,436) JRS
E " ':'.. ; ._'—"'—‘ . “
s S
- % 2t .

) 13'1.977)
U (181,977) C

e T ©O(589,732) .«
w0 L. B70655 - L o
200§ 7116823 :
‘ " s 98261
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3 SR STt NFINORTHINC ’:J?f;T'-§“=
- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | .

5% JUNE 30 2924 LS

“x . LT s W [

=

- N s
€ .;..g_».,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACBDUHI!III’EEIPOLICIES

Z-~N0TE1

3
.3 o . . - E " Lo

: 1"»‘« - Orgamzatro R S e A
" NFt North, Inc, (NFIN) is a nonprot“t organrzatron whose purpose is to provide commumty—

“based social services to individuals: and théir Faniilies. ‘NFIN is a subsidiary of North .
“American Family Institute, Inc. (NAF1), ‘which s *fhe sule . ‘member of NFIN's board of” T
_ directors. Substantrally all of NFIN's révenues’are derived from seivices contracted with the. .
A oty A " Statés of Maine and New' Hampshire’ Departments of Human Services, Children, Youth and e
A e ST Famrlles Medlcard Medicare, prrvate pay, and Ioca],pubtrc school drstncts '

v -4,

‘!5! 6- . - - .
Basrs ofPresentatron seoe L e e N ST

. The accompanying fi nancral statements whlch are :presented on the accrual basls of
accounting, havé been prepared to focus on’ NFINias a whole and to present balances and « i
transactions according to the. ex:stence of. absencé of donor—rmposed restnctrons -
Accordlngly, net assets and changes therein are classrf' ed as follows: . . o

With donor restnctrons Net assets sub;ect to donor-rmposed strpulatrons that may or wrlt be
met hy actlons of NFINand/or the passage of tlme D . T e ’

o
&, - ?

. B

A

- erhout donor restrrct‘rons Net assets: not subject to ‘donor-imposed strpulat:ons SR AN

, . s u
' wha 4

Revenues are reported as ingreases in net assets wrthout donor restrictions. unless uge of ' A
- vthe-related assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions and/or time, restnctrons Expenses SR
. -are reported as decreases in net assets without.donor restrictions. Gains and Iosses on. . -t
. investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net . Y
" assels without donor restrictions untess their use is restricted by explicit donor sttpulatrons or -
=" law, Expirations of restnctrons on net assets with donor restrictions are reported as ., ’
35.3 ,,reclassﬁ cations between ‘the applicable, classes-of net assets. -Expirations of- restrrctrons with-. Sosee s
‘s donor restriGtions occur when donor-imposed stipulated purposes have been accomplzshed .
andfor the stipulated time period has etapsed If an expense is incurred for a purpose for s
which. both net assets with and without-donpr restrictions are available, a donor-rmposed Cin
restriction is fulfilled to the extent of the expense incurred unless the expense-is for a
e purpose that i rs directly attnbutable to another specrf‘ ied external source of revenue et

o

¥, + . % * % &
® .~ *

Ad ptron of NewAccountrng Standard o : ' . o P

. ,
. “In 2024, NFIN adopted FASB ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments ~ Credil Losses (T opic -
. .« 326) Measurement of Credit Losses on Financis! instruments, as amended, which modifies
‘ ~ the measurement of expected credit losses. NFIN adopted this new gmdance using the
: modified retrospective transition method. The adoption of this Standard did not have a
L material impact on NFIN’s financial statements but did change how the altowance for credit
v Iosses is determuned ; .

+ - ¢
. R -

: . - . ) . L e
Cash and Egurvatent f L A L : Lowat -
All short-term investments with an original maturrty at purchase. of three months- or-less are ‘Y
- considered cash, equwatents for purposes- of the- statement- of cash ﬂows Cash and . -

wE equrvatents within mvestment eccounts are consrdered to be mvestments for purposes of oy

PR S
‘the statement of cash ﬁows S e -;‘ I B
'?I“;“ Lt e PR ’,--l y oy Ly g ! KR §4~"" LEn LR e
Tk l’ foor by s It TR N , 8) L "“ LT “
) CIRC I -, . o ¥ ( e P ] .
. L R Y s e ¢ - LR
§ e e M AL R .g-"‘;, . LAtAty . Y
. Py S i 3 e :f sate Ty L’i‘ s ¥ . o o
o P Tyt kA - 3 -\ -., ., ,,,a’;- Boe =
. . e
L ,"_ L L o .".n R . .. 2. "l . 34 L, .

I - E’ o
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. [NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =~ _ 't " = 7
¢« ., . JUNE30,2024 . - 3 ol
:‘ﬁ: )‘:‘{"i - ‘:_ﬁ‘f;jm. ‘t '{‘ A}h . §; . o et e W !”-— ,.; )
' . : e T e e g
o Bz e . _:"\;ﬁ'-" ot ,r.':' - . LI SR ' o - “ o T
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) - . *75
s . o e LA e [ m,. ) , : e . L e, &L g
:-!'! “ " Accounts Receiv;ble__. e ; . * oo N I = L

“ s, g NFIN carries its agcounts receivable net of an allowance for credit losses: The allowarice is = -
‘" 'determined to-present the net amount of accounits réceivable expected to be collected. The .
. ** allowance represents the expected credit losses based on- historical experience, current © %

. £, economic conditions, and certain foiward-looking information. The allowance is evaluated
P AN ;2 on a periodic basis based on an assessment 6f outstanding balances for all accounts aver .
R IR a ‘ A g ac

L e 90 days past due. Those baldhées deemed. by management to have'potential collectability
s+ issues are charged to- the allowance for credit losses accounts, As of ~June 30, 2024, the * - I
i allowan_E:e was $47,§‘58. A .o ' -

B i

' V‘Irnlé'bmé Taxes "_ T p o ET o Loy . ﬂrn."“ “ S e
NFIN is an organization described Under Section 501(c)(3)"of the Internal Reveriue Code o
+  (IRC) and is generally exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(a). NFIN.has taken ,
x .."' no signiﬁ'canluncertajn tax positions: . . -y . v
' %, ih. Use of Estimates | ¢, i - e AN LT
- . .. The preparation -of financial statements in - conformity with U.S.generally accepted  :

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect .

the reported amounts of-assets and_liabilities and disclosure of contingent-assets and =~ ~ ..¢"
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and . .,
. expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. - -
N . P . - - 3 ..-.. - . ' ‘- - “, i o iy "_":. oo
Concentration of Credit Risk ... . - " =, = - g S . i

. NFIN maintains cash balances at financial instititions, which &t times may excéed federally’
., “insured limits. NEIN has not experienced-any losses in such accounts and believes itisnol - |
exposed to any sighificant'credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.” - T 1

- W CEREH e 5

' . L e
e - 2z O -
[

Cor}centration of Risk ST . ) \ )
NFIN.receives the majority of its. funding from -state contracts that are renewabla annually. "

e hel s ... lLegislative budgets could significantly impact NFIN's ability to start new programs and to, )
o e e continue’existing-programs. - . ST Pt S e e
T EEL A T AR . Y o, e S Ml 5 ¢ : i [ - R AR )

© . . Property and Equipment - S S '
R Propeity and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the case of donated property, at fair
T value at the date of gift.- Depreciation is provided using the straight-line-method over the e "
s, following estimated useful lives: X . o,
R , Buildings and Improvements ‘ 5-33,3 years
_"’ N . Equipment and Furnishings . _ : 2-10 years -~ 5 " "
R "Vehicles ., T S not o, .35 years cae TR e ;

: f - i Lt : tl ® K o -y .
R ¥ Leasehold: imp_l_'gvements are - depreciated or amortized according to NFIN's normal.
.., ' depreciation policy except that the time period shall be the shorter of.1) the useful life of the -, ==
%t Idasehold improvements,”or 2) the remaining:years of the lease. The remaining years of the : " :

¥ P J . " - . N o . v . ‘-'. 1. ot . B . ERTAN ™ B [ _|- L
gt oy ledsg. include . the - years - ini the lease:,renewals ". that . .are, . réasonably assured.-’ 3:+
R ."; SO N Vo e : 9 BT T A o DR !,;-'!l","ﬂ

'C.’A. £k A 1 .'{,‘ oo wt "f e - ( ).: LR S S Ao * * SR # - e * iAo il

‘.l w Ta £l et PR E', Lo » N S B * ) L te P L B il s,,: M " ]

o Wy, PR Tafe ol = wdr e b - tptleon ) b A e . .

L_q‘?. vEry ; ) - LI E "J' 54 - ‘«‘x A * - L4 ; Y [ L 'i‘ ) ‘1_. ,4_.' “ .
. :‘, tan [ » [T 3 P e t: wl ¥ g * K g ' I !—:_}, v
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.. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g st
wEte o007 JUNE30,2024. s, o
P O T gt . S i . .
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIEIGANT.ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED). . * -
Se'f_'nsurance ’ 51:: “‘: iz':w;"“‘ ‘-:‘ m;- ,".:k‘:':;:. ¥ ‘.*‘ " R 'f‘“: ,l? 4 A ~ ‘!:.: : “ ""H'"‘«:' .
" NFIN'is self-insired for employee smedical. health care costs. As of June 30, 2024, the - |
. estimated liability for health care-claims incuirred ‘but notyet reported ‘or paid was $172,584 s
*-.. included in accrued payroll and rélsted Tigbilities in“the accompanying statement of financial . )
position, C ot T e e ’ L
Fair Valué of Financial Instrumeénts * * ;."-’ﬁ e " b T A
- Fair value represents the price that NFIN would receive upon the sale of an asset or paid- )
upon the transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction.between market participants as of the E
measurement date. NFIN uses @ threé-tier-hierazchy to c'q_tegorize those assets and ,
liabilities -.based on those valuation- methodologies employed. The. three-tier hierarchy of
inputs is summarized in the three broad leveis listed below, - :
“Leve/ 1~ quoted prices in active markets {'o'r.:id,ehtical financial instruments. L i
. Lq’velZ-—otﬁér.signiﬂcqnt’ observable ihputs‘(iricludi!hg quoted prices for similar financial © = .
instruments- interest rates, credit risk, etc.).: - ] ' o
Leve/ 3—-'signiﬁca_nt unabservable inputs J(including NFIN's own assumptions in Tt
determining the fair value of financiat instruniénts), CI _ ..
The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority:to.Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to - =, -
‘. Level 3 inputs. NFIN utilizes valuation techniques that maximizes the use of observable - .
Jinputs and minimizes the use of unpbsér\{able_inguts‘tq the extent possible. a T e P
Leases - o R SR LU S TR e e %
" NFIN determines if an' arrangement is & lease af inception. NFIN has leases under which it =~ °
is abligated as a lessee. Operating ‘leases jas a lessee are included in right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities.in the statement of financial. position. t T T s

' Right-of-Use assets represent NFIN's‘“right-utojug:e@in'unde’rlying'assét-'for the leaseterm.- - o
- Lease liabilities represent NFIN's liability to. make iease payments arising from the lease: - oo
z ~ + Operating fight-of-use assets and related obl_iga’;ibns are recognized at commencement date .
. : based on the present value of lease .payments over the lease term discounted using-an
o . appropriate incremental borrowing rate. NFIN has elected to use a practical expedient of the :
o risk-free borrowing rate (applicable U.S. Depaitment of Treasury risk-free treasury rate) as - .
- the incremental borrowing rate, which is based on the information available at ; .

. commencement date’in determining the present value of lease payments. The value of an

option to extend or terminate.a lease is reflected to the extent it is reasonably certain

<«  management will exercise thatoption. .. ". =, ., . - L .

ribw N ER R . *
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.7 ¢ i " NOTES TO FINANCIAL'STATEMENTS . B N
= i 'j;.i" Y . LT JUNE 30 ‘2024 , ' . " N BT f:“_}‘a‘ i - '.';';’
’ e xtt'f " A wid L . ~: ? . i ‘ v l'\. ” PRI W r=r ‘ ‘;
IOTE 1 _PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND:SIGNIFICA‘NI&‘BI:D]BHHIING POLICIES (commuen) S
Revenue Recognition o Lo -’ o S : N e

NFIN recognizes reverue at an amount Ihat .ret]ects the -consideration to which NFIN -,
-expects to be entitled in exchange for transferrlng goods or services to its customers usmg S

the following fi ive-step process: e R L e i ;ﬁ L
1. 1., identify the contract(s) with the customer T v o k LLC ' ;:’5
2L 2. Identify the performance cbligation(s) mthe*contract : PR S
# 3. Determine the transaction price - R N
4. Allocate the transaction price to performance- obhgatrons in the contract i LR .
. 5. Recognize revenue when (or as) NFIN satisfi esa performance oblrgatron ; B f
See note 7 for details on how the above. F ve- step process is applied to NFIN's contracts wlth o, -
_customers, \ ) B T
., Contributed Nonfinancial Assets " - ' ; e
> NFIN receives the contributions of the use of facrlltres which are valued at the fair value of . 7.
i similar properties availablé’ use in commercral markets. NFIN also receives contributed : - '
_ o - goods which are value at estimated fair value, See note 8 for addttsonal mformatron on
el ";_\ + " contributed nonfi nancral assets in 2024, - T N
Adver‘tlsmg Costs' ié't; R o T
Adveirtising costs are expensed’ ‘as rncurred Advertlsmg costs rncurred totated $81 423 S
durmg the year ended June 30, 2024, L = e " P
b Subseguent Event — . Lo R e t.gi’;*l," S T e .

- NFIN has evaluated. subsequent events through September 30 2024 ‘the date which the g fi-.t- "
ﬁnancralrstatements were available for’ issuie, noting no events requmng adjustment to, or- " ¢ *

- disclosure in, the financial statements - S R
; LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANC]AL ASSETS ot e e
: Lo S . ’ P
Lo . As of June 30, 2024 assets avarlable for generat expendrture that is, W|thout donor or-cther .
S0 %7 restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the statement of fi nanma! position date,
i comprise the following: ) ‘ ‘ _ B N
" . Cash ant:t equivalents T . | o '$ 7,516,523
C Accounts receivable, net i . : 7,438,921
- - Investments . " Co 5,193,750 -
. - ' .Duefrom affiliate o e 172742
T f Total financial assets . R 19,822,236 - -+ . ..zt
T " Less amounts .designated for program purposes . (362,965) - S ‘

Total fi nancral assets available for general expendttures $ 19,559,271
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f\r

As part of the NFIN s ltqurd:ty managemem,Nﬁlenamtamsmmt@ng capttal lmes of credit, -
-which provides liquidity avallabie to- meet ;general expendltr:rres -as . fiabilities cand other
obltgatton ‘come. due RS A of i Sty e

i B T - 9 B o »
i Ly f i v

RS P r *

NAFI makes avallable to its subsadtanes lncludlng NFIN “NAFI Connecticut-inG. (NAFICT)
~ NFI Vermant, Inc. {NFIV}) and NFl Massachusetts Inc. (NF1)~"a. two-year term committed

E

. fluctuating rate €équal to the Federal Reserve Bank of New“York 1-Month ‘Secured Overnlght
- Financing Rate (SOFR), plus 2.00% per ‘annum, not t0-exceed 6.00%, (6.00%:as of-
June 30, 2024).§Borrowmgs under the line are jointly guaranteed by NAFI, NAFICT, NFIV,
NFI and NFIN and are collateralized by substantially all of their assets:

-
® * - ¥

Borrowmgs under thie line of credit,due and payable on May 31, 2026 without notice or
demand. As of June 30, 2024, there were' no borrowmgs outstandmg under this ine"-of

=

credit. . =~ . RCTNE S .

- A . * .
« N - R4 . . & i -
- . [N & P s
5 > . LE3

In- addltion NAFI has entered |nto Letter of Credtt agreements with TD for a total amount of
$959 620. The Letter of Credit’ agreements can be utilized: by all subsidiaies in "the
aggregate of $8 000,000 and are not collateralized by additional cash. The Letter of Credit
agreements afe a reqmrement ot’NAFI S. workers compensatton carrier, .

¥,

£

INVESTMENTS _’ T, a ’:ﬂji v P A
‘ : BEEE NI Fanhogg, w oy w s
.. lnvestments are carrred at falr value.’ Investments as of June 30, 2024 COI’ISISted of the i
followrng . - Lt . O C
. Corporate, bbhds- Sy 7§ 2620975 L
" i o ook A w FE y e . "
g.,t' . Equiies 3 et TR g e 12440923 7 T
*+5 7.4 Cashand equsvalents : SO D e 122862 - T
- o . . P $. 5,193,750
. :,-f .‘ 'All_in'trestments' are valued using Level 1 inpuls in accordance with the fair value hierarchy,
Lo, except corporate bonds which are considered Level 2. There were no transfers between fair

L7, ¢ value levels during the year. ' e

faclllty $8,000,000 line of credit from TD:Bank. The iline of credit bears interest at a_°

Wl

[

s
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iy ] .
. P - . e
i TE R S5E
Y . . Yy 2 _-, =2
£ e FA Y L T : e .. T T e - [ I

N "niores LONG-TERM DEBT L s

' 5 "Long term debt as of June 30, 2024 consrsted of the’ followmg

.:.;' : ' ;.a ! ' e . H Y ] o F|5ca‘ -7 . § R

k{,‘ . T R TR Year Due Amount A
t 5 o -+ B RS B i " - &5 - o M
Mortgages payable, secured by real estate. 0. 00%-80 0% -+ "2028-2041 s 2 535, 653 L
Total Iong-term debt . e ved ot I . .t,_—__z.535-5,53 ‘ men, §
’ . ' . i "ﬁ" N T * . \ R -# S

' Less current portron o . L - . g . (182,899) ien .
Total Iong term debt, net’ of current portlon _— . i . 4 .0$ 2352754 y
A L w e

Kl » B 4

kS H .

.

; " s+ Certain mortgages payable to housing authormes provide that a pomon of the principal will - .
: be forgiven at the end of the .loan period if the underlying properties are used to provide R
_"housing in accordance with stipulated conditions. In addition, certain mortgages payable

gcontain var:ous prepayment penaltles ’ :

., E I PR . v"? s
3 1 . ‘~'§ ¥ . 3 K3 S s. . i ‘_‘\-- "y
NFIN is requwed to mamtam certam debf servuce ‘Coverage ratlos - et s s
g Scheduled repayments of long- term debt are as foltows . s
LI " Tax Lo o
. [y . B S A N ‘»._ 5 3 L :: 'n':.:“‘ ® : i . 2
P Tetd Year ended June 30: - ST T e Y s -
PEREE NURC F 2025 ° STy 182,899 Y ’
, e ety S 2026 ) Co Lo J, s 817,920 _
wtae ] S 2027 7 v AT, s T 7325160 ", L
P X -'"1. S 1 ‘*'1 2028 ' h i ' RS N Lo -"‘ 462,633 : A
b 2029 L R N A 11} -7 B S C
. Thereafter- * t"i‘-_'" <L " 845,468 . e
L} Ty 2 - . ¥ N ——————————— - Leal 80
A _ X . CE e .0 § 2535653 Tl
3] T M 4 ! ) tae, . mam s B T bl
o % Interest expense was $98,261 for the year ended June 30, 2024, [ re W
l;_;’ . it T: . _“.‘lm ; - s ' ) r.;.l‘ i -‘ . . . ,.5 ¥ i . . Iy o % o . Y § R >
S ] \ * . : ) * I . - T . ) . l.‘ .. '. N
NOTE6 . LEASES R - ;, o o

.+ NFIN is commrtted to annual ‘bayments under several long-term non-cancelable {except
7 . ‘under certain -circumstances) operating leases for property and equipment through fiscal ' .
; year 2030. FLENTE . L S
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s i . Sa L : . js} . ‘ i '
. NOTES LEASES (CONTINUED) ol e T
L e Tt ' \o
T ff’f_,,"i -Lease expense reponed in occupancy, transper.tahon and equnpment in 1hestatement: of R
v j‘-e;rl':—’ functional expenses- amounted  to $105 516 for the year ended .June 30, 2024, sAhe-, s =
components of which- are as foIIows : - . e o .
N o RS PRSP T v T SRS v T e WE e A
it b -+ ;‘-."“ ToE e - E [3 bt - r YT R o T o
) “Leasecost 1 - S - W ol _
S Op,eratfng lease expense T - . - ) $ " o8s3e. T s
N i e T« UShon-téfm leasé expense | 2 coT LT 16,200 7 N A
N TR L oo .o $ 105516 :-_ £ ;
i: i'.? i § -{i‘ .:‘, B e . " N _‘-‘- N . - Tt ., .
e c Operatmg nght-of—use assets exchanged for Iease liabilities durmg 2024 totaled $28 649 f;
ST T . F’ayments due’ include optzons to extend Ieases that are reasonably certaln through f scal . |
_ = . year2030 and are summarized below: . . . . o .
Year ended June 30: - ' . s ;
ey 205 T - TS
et 2026»‘, P - B 11,489, w0 Y
L2027 AT O & < T e
$ 2028 .. Ve . .8383 e T
2029 . T T T 585 T Lt T
Thereafter v w0 . 255 o ALY
B --, S el . 70,127 e S
Less amounts representmg mterest .t " {3, 7112 o
Operatmg Iease I|ab|||t|es . 33_«3;' $a 66416 . . b v S Y,
it S g . S ’.. W _a—. g MY ‘_i"-“l A
P st L * % s v
Y lan The welghted -average remammg lease lerm for operatlng leases is 36 months The ' L
L W welghted ;average discount rate for operating Ieases 15347% . S L
..“‘M .:‘ ’ ;,-*” v o " . \" - « - ' ...- ;: 'lr 5: : ;-) (I E,_‘:!.?- a‘_ X PR o : 1;; .,
. E " NOTE? REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS o g A
“7 T " Under Aécounting Standards Codmcatlon Topic 606, Revenue from Conlracts. with
o Customers, (ASC Topic'606), revenuge from contracts with custorners is recognized when™ -
L " conirol of the promised goods or services is iransferred in an amount.that reflects the:
’ consideration to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services (e, © .~
thetransachon price). ' ' . . o
T .= Revenues from contracts are prlman[y derwed from cost relmbursement per diem and - "
. fee-for service contraclts. Cost reimbursement contracts are recognized with expenses being . e

relmbursed for services delivéred over the course of cllent enrollment penod which is 3.~
generally as expenses are mcurred - -
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N r'l ) ! ] ::” Ry P ST ey Y S '.' ) N
. -:l.r : : : * . ' *! ’e ry * - -;,_a\i. “!;.q, -
NOTE 7 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS«DENH‘JNUED) ) ST
. . 5 ‘. "!:""':'.
RS -y Rale based contracts are recogmzed with:expensesibéing u‘e:mbursed for services delivered ey
iw =l 7, dver the courge of client: stay based on-ar%established rate with'the related funding source , -
o el which is generally when services are provided. Revenues-rdm contracts consisted of 23%
R for cost reimbursement: contracts” and 77% for vate-.basedmontracts for the year ended L
e . June 30, 2024 LT : Ly N
. o i Balances of accounts recelvable and deferred reventre 'related to contracts with customers o
Lt o are summarized below:- ' ‘ o ]
R R R T S s Y Accounts T Defemed .
cro F R e A ' * .t 7" Receivable - . Revenue S
T " .. Opening (July 1;2023) - ° | . . .78 49858173 . § 14,932 -
. .. '+ Closing (June 30, 2024) - D 7,438,921 148,668 ,
o g Increase e . . $ 2480748 - $ 134736 .
R s30T " o " ok '-‘.‘ . I . T o L. ' hm’ L
e NOTE8 CONTRIBUTED NONFINANCIAL ASSETS e - . e
AN i . : Forthe year ended June 30, 2024, contnbutlons of nonfi nancial assets recognlzed by NFIN Y ‘
w, s ‘-'"-\"-!;'_-_*"fig,'- wﬂhmthe statement of activities included:* R LA . cooe T
BECL L - S ) N s . . '.'.: , U L . e Lo "-'"'
* ‘Rent - h . . Lt $ 1,092,565 e e W
Consumables and supplies. ** - g e .- 62,068 T U
] ) NFIN recognlzed contnbuted nonfi nancna[ assets W|thm revenue |ncludlng contnbutlons of Lo
et . " reni, consumables and supphes Conlributed nonfinancial assets dld not have donor-
R imposed restrictions. - . * Co . " t.
Ao e - )
Cra . . . The contributéd space is-for programmahc activities. In valuing the contributed space, which-, !
FE R T S s located in Concord, New Hampshlre NFIN estimated the fair value on the basis of recent” Do
L A b comparable rental prices in the area’s real estate market . : -
* . NOTES RETIREMENT PLAN SRS S
' NFIN has a qualified défined contribution retirement plan for eligible employees to which '
S annual contributions are made at the discretion of NFIN's Board of Directors. NFIN elected )
- to make-a contribution of $420,346 for_the year.ended June 30, 2024. These expenses are - - .
Sl < 4 ' included in employee benefits gxpense wathm the accompany:ng statement of funct:onal v .
S expenses. - ) , - o » e
.I_..: _,;| ?V - . ¥ .
-l“.::'@:.' :.::'t' ." £
TP I .’w_;:
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Lo NOTE10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS S M
s s o . North . American Family- [nstitute, *Inc.* "(NAFI!) an afﬂtate charges an adrnrmstratlve «‘n"',__‘,
. EAPRE 2 management fee for supporting service costs“that INAFI incurs 'on behalf of the subsidiaries. S
1 w1 These allocated costs.amiounted to $1,944,078for the yéar ended June 30, 2024, and have * '_-" <
. o T4 - been included in supportrng sérvices.expensesiinthe accompanymg statements of aottwtres ol
Lo L, and contracted services expenses wrthm the statement of functlonal expenses e
Ly : o In “addition, NFIN pays NAF| a property charge for usage of certain f' xed ‘assets of NAFI Car .
L - This charge was $20,502 for the year ended-June 30, 2024, and has been included in the . @ N
L L accompanylng Statements of actlwtles and functlonal expenses . ' L < ‘
- pr ’{_. Cost relmbursement overpayments have resulted ina balance due from NAFI as of:June 30, a K
.‘,."' & 2024 in the amount of $172,742. This amount has been reported as due from affiliate in the - .,
¢ . accompanymg statement of financial posutron and is expected to be paid in one year t
T YoLw X . 1 et ) .t
T NOTE 1 conrmeenmss o e e e
TR A the normal course of operatlons NFIN is"subject to tHe laws and regulatlons of federal,
. o -u state, and local governments. From time to time,’NFIN may be notified of potential claims or N I
' ey N *. ... litigation. Management evaluates such cldims if they arise. NFIN was. riotified that it was - ;'.,j
T e named a party to an ongoing. lawsuut The, outcome of the lawsunt is- not yet finalized. ~ . .. .o
‘3 .‘a"l‘ . _é’f’-:-' t* f ML A -l . .I “: :‘_ -
<7 _"_ - NFIN has established a reserve of $1, 083 712 for managements estlmatlon of probabte L
_,; .+, expenses related to ongoing litigation. Since. information regardtng the case conlinues to .
en s el evolve, management contmues to evaluate and monrtor any potential |mpact to the T
S ST S A Y orgamzatlon ] L S e ol , -
R AR Y ;_2 . . v T T T T L ¥ B A - :
- ' ‘i"“’ ‘ ‘: ' ; ”’i -’ £ ‘ l 1;!- - ) I ’ i | ) ‘,-,-, -
R ot Yt 2 4 » . . v . “‘ " ‘ -
: “,'° -.'ﬂ. S P S e "'.. - . . )
4“.'.’ - te, "\:":; _': N v * - .’ i - tar - . 1 ; 1 h L9 hd K AR A
: ) ' . . . ¢ ‘ e
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» § - INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ONINTERNAL CGNTROL OVER FINANCIAL -
.17, REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND'OTHER MATTERSBASED ON ANAUDIT :
"% t.,  OFFINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH - L
B 7+ GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS =~ - - ’

' A .. S . i
kS

e A . .

“Board of Directors e < - A e
- NFI North, Inc. . | o .. . i - T
Contoocook, New Hampshire - £

~ ) - . R - S - . s "
* ) .

i

; . .
. o e s - - . H -
PR - Ve - . 2
.

" s We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accépted in the United States of
. America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NF| Noith, Inc. (a
" nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the
. félated statements of activities, functional expenses, and, cash flows for the year then ended, and the .
. - related notes'to the financial statements, and have -issued our report thereon dated September 30, .
<R 2024 . . ) - . oo ) R

W . =
Y 3 -
* At a

i

- - 4 e .

" e N » 1 ' N
. . -

- -.-Reporton Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - ' - -
~ *."in- planning and performing our audit of the financial-statements, we considered ‘NFI North,-inc's - .
S “internal control over financial reporting'(internal control) as a basis for designirig_audit pracedures that
- are. appropriate .in the circumstances for thé purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial .
‘statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion-on the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s ‘e
. s, +internal control. Accordihgly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NF| North, Inc.'s :

-

» iriternal control.,. - ST o s L ey e e

¢ 4 Aut
LI 4 g

Pl v, L

'
H 3 s
* w ' Pt * ¥

2t - . . .
T we W r P . “ + N
-y - b

"A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow
management or employees, in the normal course of .performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
-+ detect and correct, misstaterients on a timely basis. A material weakness is, a deficiency, or a
. combination,of deficiencies, .in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material : . -,
" yisstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented; or detected and corrected, on a” R
" timely basis. A significant deficiency is.a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in interiial control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough-to merit attention by those charged
_ with governance. : . X L i
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be’ material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
teficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, However, material

.+ .. +weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist thal were notidentified. = .. . T
: .k ] [N . . .

. .. PR

S

- = - - -

o A i . ! . - o ST - - 1o
a4 " s . Y e e b5 T Ly - k w .
Larsonafien LLP) # an idependent hetwork H\EI.I'II;EI obe\»Gloh'al.See Laglohal, dischaimer. . - - * L T
o ] R . ¥ - g It T
] @ e A ' T - E . * A S
M T LA (17) s . N A T g ., LIPR .:‘ P
‘ o TR e . . e
: Ny wor, Y e Al B L4 TR L L
.' . ; e . X R LI . - : f N
. ot = 0 . et B a‘ P, e : . -
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L3 By,

. Board of Dlrectors
NF] Norlh lnc

e e e Report on Comphance and OtherMatters o . O R e
- . .As part'of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether.lNFd North, Inc.'s fi nanmal statements are free -
+ =t - from-material misstatement, we performed tests of its 'comphance with certain provisions of laws, . -,
T . Jegulations, contracts,-and grant agreements, noncompliance with ‘which could have a direct and SR
- 'matenal effect on the financial staterrents: However, .providing-an opinion.on compllance with those™
' provisioris was not an “objective of our audit, and accordingly, -we do not express’such an opinion. The- . Co
* i, results. of aur fests disclosed no instances of noncompliariceror other matters that are reqmred to be . ..
- _-reported under Govemment Audrtmg Standards. - D, w e

N}

i .

o ® L « u -

w - vil w . s o e -
o o . 4 '

Purpose of this Report . gt . e e LT e S W
. ‘The purpose of this report, is. so!ely to descnbe the scope of our ‘testing of |nterna[ control and . )
: compilance and the resulis of that testing, and not 1o provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the .
. _ . enftity's intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in e
¢+ r . accordance with Govemmment Audiling Standards .in considering the entity's mternal con!rol and-=
.o own compllance Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose .- :

. P
o lxe, EEN £ 7-;

» N -

: CllftonLarsonAIIen LLP - 7 T L
_ ;qutgn‘, Massaéhusett_s St T
L3 . 3 -

. < > September30,2024 T s - Cae v R
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NFINORTH, INC.
OFFICERS
Title Name . Address
‘ Patricia Fillio
President Licensed Clinical Mental
Health Counselor
Ashley Wainwright
Treasurer Marketing Professional
Dellie Champagne
Clerk/Secretary Events .
Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer
Regggmsmentative 7
~ BOARD OF DIRECT(
Name Occupation Address
Suanne Nader Educator
Dellie Events
Champagne Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer |
Representative
Ashley
Wainwright Marketing Professional
Terry Lochhead
' Retired Communications
Consultant
Patricia Fillio
Licensed Clinical Mental
) Health Counselor
Don Nason
Attorney
Sophia Greabe
Education

Terms: Until successors are duly elected and qualified. NOTE: No compensation for Members or
Directors As of: 10/21/24
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Noel Chipmari

LICENSE :
New Hampshire Licensed Independent Clinical Secial Worker April 2004

L '
EDUCATION

Masters in Social Work, Simmons Graduate School, Boston MA May 2001
Bachelor of Arts in Sociology, Hartwick College, Oneonta NY May 1997

PROFESSIONAL WORK EXPERIENCE

Transitional Housing Services, Concord NH January 1, 2012-Present

- Clinical Director responsible for the overall planning, implementation and oversight of the clinical services
provided by NFI North Transitional Housing Services in Concord, Bradford, Bethlehem, Ashland and Manchester.
- Manager and supervisor of the THS Concord day treatment program and its clinical, case management, supported
employment, educational and direct care staff ,

- Oversee and provide individual and group therapy to consumers with severe persistent mental illness, found not
guilty by reason of insanity, incompetent to stand trial, sexual offenders and / or folks with other criminal
backgrounds )

- Management and assessment of all new referrals for THS locations from New Hampshire Hospital, Community
Mental Health Centers and various designated receiving facilities and arrange evaluations when needed

- Oversee, review and approve the development of individual client centered, strengths based treatment plans

- Facilitate and coordinate clinical trainings for THS staff and agency staff

- Review of clinical records to ensure quality and compliance with state regulations and Joint Commission
standards and provide feedback and training on record keeping

- Provide the schedule and curriculum of 50-60 groups weekly and rotating quarterly as a part of a Restorative
Partial Hospitalization (RPH) servicing 40 consumers with mental health challenges

- Collaborate with program management and staff regarding the therapeutic milieu and the clinical orientation of
THS

- Facilitate new consumer interviews, quarterly reviews, client centered conferences, family meetings, discharge
meetings and other various meetings with outside providers

- Collaborate with many outside agencies state wide to ensure our THS programs are meeting the needs of our
consumers, other outside agencies and the community at large

- Supervisor for clinicians seeking licensure and graduate student interns

Transitional Housing Services, Concord NH May 2003- January 1, 2012
-Experienced Senior Psychiatric Social Worker; Clinical team leader heading multi-disciplinary treatment team

- Provides therapeutic clinical services for individuals with severe and persistent mental illness

and/ or substance abuse issues, sexual offenders and forensic clients in a rehabilitative partial hospitalization
program .

-Provides individual, family, group and milieu therapy

-Completes comprehensive psychosocial assessments, risk assessments, individual treatment plans and eligibility
determinations and assists with writing policy

-Facilitates and manages client centered conferences and quarterly review meetings

-Leader of interdisciplinary treatment team that meets daily to insure proper treatment and aftercare planning for
difficult to reach clients

-Awareness of legal issues including guardianships, court orders, probate commitments, conditional discharges
and revocations, which often require court appearances and testimony

-Supervision of treatment team case managers and student interns

-Illness management and recovery train the trainer

Maui Memorial Medical Center, Kahului, HI June 2005-January 2006
-Psychiatric Social Worker: Provides services for adults with severe mental illness and / or substance abuse issues
and forensic patients on a short-term inpatient psychiatric unit

-Comprehensive psychosocial assessments, treatment plans / education plans, substance abuse screening, daily.
treatment team meetings and discharge meetings.
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-Provide crisis intervention, individual therapy, family therapy and daily life skills groups

-Case Management service / discharge planning _
Souza-Baranowski Correctional Center, Shirley MA 2001-2003
-Diagnostic assessment crisis intervention, suicide prevention and 1:1 psychotherapeutic and substance abuse
services to adult male inmates in a maximum security setting

-Comply with and adhere to institutional safety procedures in accordance with UMCHP / DOC established policies
-Case management / discharge planning

-Mental health representative for the Department of Corrections transition planning meetings

-Daily triage and segregation rounds

-Leader of a student intern support group

-Supervision of Student Interns

McLean Hospital Belmont, MA (Graduate School Internship) 2000-2001
-Case management / clinical work on an adult inpatient psychiatric unit

-Daily patient rounds, psychosocial assessments and 1:1 psychotherapeutic services

-Group therapy Co-Leader; Adult woman outpatient eating disorder group

-Ongoing collaboration with outpatient treaters, community residences, partial hospital / day treatment programs,
family work and completion of treatment plans .

Mass. Eating Disorder Association Newton, MA {Graduate School Internship) 2000-2001
-Assessments, group intakes, family / individual consultations, and school based prevention presentations
-Evening treatment program, meal mentoring program and Co-Leader of various program groups

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

- Certified Life Coach with a specialty in Organizational and Time Management Skills
- Certified Signs of Suicide Prevention and Programming (SOS) Trainer

- ANSA Certification

- Toastmasters [nternational Speechcraft Certificate Program

- NF1 Leadership Program: Completed six month program in 2014

- Certified Illness Management and Recovery Practitioner and Trainer

- Certified Supported Employment Practitioner

- Certified DBT Practitioner

- Agency trainer for Family Systems, Group Process and Counseling Skills
~ NFI North Conference Presenter 2013 and 2015

- NAF] Spirit of the Community Committee

= Certified Public Supervisor: Completed one-year program in June 2008
- Former NHH Assaulted Staff Action Program responder

- Former NHH Schwartz Center Rounds committee member

- Former NHH Ethics Committee member

AWARDS / RECOGNITIQONS

- NFI North Agency Shining Star Award (2015)

- NFI North Agency Dr. Yitzhak Bakal Essence of Leadership Award (2013)
- Two-time gold star award winner (2009 and 2011}

- Special recognition award winner (2005)
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.Jennifer L. Altieri

Obj ective

s

Key:Skills and Strengths
*Léadeiship — Adept at leading/managing cross-functional programs.
+System building and. implementation
*Capable of leading high performing teams tinder tough deadlines, to meet expectations
of multiple stakeholders and other regulatory entities.
*Sitong communication skills {verbal and writteri).

+Problem solver = > Creativity and forethought in solving complex project issues:

'Mssiers of Science, ¢
-Accreditation of Counseling aiid Related Educational Programs (CACREP) Graduation date, December 1

‘Bachelor of Science, Hunian Services/Counseling, Lyndon State College, 2002

A motivated professional seekmg a posmon that continues fo enhance my skills and
challenge further growth and development wh:Ie providing leadership to plan, directand
'coordma:e - program expausmn program overslght and system implementation..

e Eonali
teal Meniol Health Cozmse!mg u-n‘han addzcz’zons treatmeﬁf
Certifi icate, Plymouth State Umversﬁy Plymouth N.H. Accredited by the Covnsel for

of 2015. GPA 3.75

'Professional Experience

'Regiouai Director, NFI North 12/2022- Current

Responsible for oversecing the administration: of assigned programs; Provide leadership, supervision, guidance, and

-elinical siipport. Résponsible for communicating all policies and procedures, contract negotistions sad development,

fiscal planning and on-call availability.

Care Management Entity Administrator, NFI North 1/2021-12/2022

Respotisible for overseeing the administration of all programs of the Care Management Entity (CME) that
serves-as a centralized accountability hub to coordinate all care for yonth with complex behavioral health
chailenges who are m\foiwd in multiple'systems. The CME Administrator provides leaxiers?np supervision,
guidance, and clinical support to programs and staff. Responsible for commmnicating all policies and
procedures, contract negotiations and development, fiscal planning and on-call availability.

Program Dirvector, NFI North FAST Forvard and Tr-ECC State Wide 2017-1/2021 Qversee program

.operations for two separate entities. One providing a Certified Wraparound modet to children, youth and

families ages 5-21. The other entity providing intensive transitional services to Residential and psychiatric
hospitalized children, youth and families,

Program Director, NFI North FAST Forwvard and Counmunity Based Services; State Wide 2017-2020.
Oversee program opesations for two separate entities. One providing a Certified Wiaparound model to

children, youth and families ages 5-21. The other entity provides intensive therapeutic services throngh
clinicians and case manages§ through two different New Hampshire certified programs serving 0-21 years.

of age. Individual service option‘and Fditer ¢are as well as Home Based Therapentic Services.
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Program Director, NFI North transitional housing, Maple Lodge, Bethlehem New Hampshire. And Array
of Services, Community Based, and January 2016-2017.

Transferred to manage a residential program and pervasively mentally ill adults. Included a staff team of 10
+ and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake,
discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff, record
keeping, training, marketing, licensing foster homes and supervision of staff.

Intern, NFI North Transitional Housing—Concord January 2015-December 2015
Currently completing a 600 hour internship and providing individual therapy to three
consumers at THS and co-facilitated many. groups to include; moming community
meeting, art therapy, wellness recovery actin plan, fitness, substance abuse, secking
safety, vocational group, and community livings skills support group and coping skills. I
am currently facilitating Illness Management and Recovery group and Wellness
Recovery and Action Plan group. Competent in navigating the legal systems of
Consumers to include the NGRI status, incompetent to stand trial and sex offenders.
Knowledgeable around diagnosts of psychotic disorders.

Program Director, NFI Norih Array of Services. Davenport School and 1SQ Services 2009-January 2016
Promoted to manage a residential program and school and community based services for emotionally
disturbed adolescents. Included a staff team of 25 + and an annual budget. Responsible for-all clinical and
programmatic operations, including intake, discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal
management, hiring and terminating of staff, record keeping, training, marketing, licensing foster homes
and supervision of staff.

Program Director, NFi, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.- 2008-2009
Promoted to manage an intermediate level treatment facility for emotionally disturbed adolescents.
Included a staff of 15+. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake,
discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff, record
keeping, training and supervision of staff.

Assistant Program Director; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H-June 2004-
2008

Responsible for assisting the Program Director in the overall functioning and operation of the program,
including administrative tasks, staff supervision, group/individual counseling and crisis intervention.

Shift Supervisor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.- January 2002-June
2004,

Responsible for the supervision of assigned direct care staff and program consumers for designated shift.

Residential Counselor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.- October 2000-
January 2002. ’

Modeled appropriate behavior and social skills for adolescent girls in a residential setting. Includes tasks
such as monthly reports, writing daily progress notes and having continuous contact with guardians,

Professional Development

*  NH Disaster Behavioral health Response Teams Basic Training
The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has developed an
organized team of behavioral health providers to respond to the mental health needs of New
Hampshire residents following disasters (e.g., bioterrorism, man-made or natural disasters)

* PREPaRE: School Crisis Prevention and Intervention Training
The PREPaRE curriculum has been developed by the National Association of School
Psychologists (NASP) as part of NASP's decade-long leadership in providing evidence-based
resources and consultation related to school crisis prevention and response. PREPaRE training is
ideal for schools committed to improving and strengthening their school safety and erisis
management plans and emergency response,



Docusign Envelope ID: B8798957-146C4609-B87B-8925DEFQOFI7

Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) Coordinator for NFI North. Responsible for PREA
implementation, policy making and training of staff. Agency trainer utilizing NFI North’s
curriculum I co-train staff on professional boundaries, Treatinent Intervention, Family systemns,
and docwmentation skills. Also, designed and presented at NFI North’s annual conference on
“Girls finding their voice® and ‘Marketing your services.”

Iiness, Masagement and Recovery Currently being trained and will ebtain a 16 hour
certification on this evidence based training.

Supported Employment 2 day certification

Medication training

Trauma Informed peer support training by SAMHSA one day training developed for the
Mational Center for Trauma Informed Care

CADY (communities for alcohol and drug free youth) active panel member for Graﬁon county’s
restorative justice expansion program.2013-cwrrent

Grant Awarded through the Building Bridges Initiative and Transition To Permanency Project.
Focused around Family Driven and Youth Guided Treatment.

Grant writing workshops, NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services and The North
Country consortim,

Suicide Prevention Conference, YSPA of NH.

Certified in Child and Adolescent Needs Scale {CANS)

Sclence Implementation

NH Wraparound’

. Membership/Affiliation
Member of American Counseling Association (ACA) Currently Expired
National Certified Counselor (NCC) NBCC’s flagship credential, the National Certified
Counselor (NCC) recognizes counselors who voluntarily apply and successfully complete rigorous
standards. These standards are based on research in the counseling profession. The NCC is the
prerequisite for all NBCC specialty certifications Currently not reinstated
Certified as a Huwmnan Services- Board Certified Practitioner (HS-BCP) by the Center of
Credentialing and Education and the National Qrganization of Human Services.
Inducted into Plymouth State University’s Upsilon Pi, which is a chapter of Chi Sigma Tota
{CSI), which is an international counseling honor society.
Board Panel Member with IOD/NAMI to approve Certifications for all NH Wrap Coordinators.

Awards/Recognition
Scholarship Awarded throngh National Board for Certified Counselors to further my educatmn
at Plymouth State University. Scholarship awarded was 35,000.00.
Nominated and selected as one of thie 40 under forty recipients for New Hampshire (2014).
Dr. Yitzhiak Bakal Essence of Leadership award (2010}
Courage to Grow Award (2001)
Shining Star (2014).
Spirit of community award NFI/NAFI (2019)
Recognition for velunteering time to missions trips to Nicaragua (2006) and Africa (2008.)
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BUILDING PERSONAL AND PROFESSIONAL RELATIONSHIPS
- DEVELOPING STRONG WORKPLACE CULTURE

ABILITY TQ SEE THE GLASS HALF FULL

CLINICALLY SOUND IN DIAGNOSIS AND TRAUMA

HIGHLY ORGANIZED - MULTITASKER

GRITTY AND COMPETITIVE

POLICY AND PROPSOAL WRITING

OPEN TO FEEDBACK AND GROWTH

FISCALLY SAVY

RESPONSIVE

OPERATING OFFICER
NFI NORTH, BRIDGTON, MAINE
February 2024-Present

| Aproven leadermthe field of]mman services Provide oversight to allagency operations for NFINorth. Ensure the overall

forover32 years: Wellorganmed smart;and * o mission, vision, and policies of the agencyare followed. Duties include the
- creatm I_ongtenn success “ommgwnh and.;-. i  multi-million-dollar, fiscal management of 26 individual programs in two

states, includmg multiple residential, five schools, and both child and adult
community outreach, Foster Care, Wraparound, and Case Management
services. Chaitperson and facilitator of monthly clinical meetings, ensuring
the fidelity of the normative approach and other clinical modalities are
followed. Program development and strategic planning as part of the
Admmistrative Team, and in conjuncture with Statewide Partnerships.
Uphold all icensing regulations and Joint Comunission Standards including
DEIB initiatives. Provide direct oversight to the Director of HR and the HR
department including the hinng, onboarding, and tramingofstaff. Provide
direct oversight to the Director of Development and Marketingand the
recent rebranding mitiative for the agency. Mentorleadership team
members, inclnding Regional Directors foreach state of ME and NH,
providing supervision, coaching, and puidance as needed. Champion ail
program participants, families, and connected team members for
successiil treatment outcomes.

REGICNAL DIRECTOR
NF1 NORTH, BRIDGTON, MAINE
November 1996-2024

Provide owersight to all program operations in the State of Maine, Ensure the
overall mission, vision, and policies ofthe agencyare followed. Duties
inclide the multi-million-dollar, fiscalinanagemerit of 1 5 individual
programs, including residential, four schools, and both child and adult
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community outreach. Chairperson and facilitator of monthly clinical
development meetings, ensuring the fidelity of the nomative approach and
other clinicalmodalities are followed. Program development and strategjc
planning as part of the Administrative Team:, and in conjuncture with
Statewide Partnerships. Uphold all licensimg regulations and Joint
Comumission Standards including DEIB initiatives. Mentor leadership team -
members providing supervision, coaching. and gnidance as needed. |
Champion all program paiticipants, families, and connected team membérs
forsuccessfil treatment outcomes.

PROGRAM DIRECTOR
NFINORTH, LEWISTON, MAINE
APRIL 1992-NOVEMBER 1956

Provide oversight for all program operations for Dirigo Place, a 7-bed
program foradolescents in need. Duties ncluded start up activities
inclnding policy writing, facility construction oversight, and the hiring and
onboardmg of staff. Oversight of all clinical and educational programming.
Build community partrerships with stakeholders and development oflocal
Advisory Board. Work in collaboration with local psychiatric hospital and
contracted psychiatrist to ensure ¢lnical success. Lead weekly
management, staff, and commuunity meetings. Mamtain physical plant
accordingto MSHA and Staté Fire Marshall regrilations.

MASTERS OF SCIENCE IN MENTAL HEALTH COUNSELING
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN MAINE
1991-1995

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN COMMUNICATIONS - PSYCHOLOGY
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN MAINE
1980—1985

Resident Assistant in the First CO-ED Dosm on Campus
1981-1984

Trainer in the following topic areas:

Nommative Community Approach

Safe Altematives For Everyone
Supervisory Skills

Trauma Iafonned Meaningfil Engagement
Counseling Skills

Group Process

Docnmentation Skills-Evaluation Wiiting

.,
C..

)
L

L)
Exs

> e

.,

o

o<

Recent Trainings Attended:
© NAFIConference: Presentation Skills, Public Speaking 2023
< Boston National Trauma Conference 2022
% Work Huinan, Drving Workplace Culture by Leveraging Recognition
2023
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Awards and Recognition
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Best Place to Work in Maine (2018-2023)
NFINORTH Remarkable Role Model 1999
NFINORTH Yitzhak Bakal I eadership 2011
NAFI Individual Spirit of Community 1997

Professional Memberships and Assighments
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Child and Family Provider Network Member 28 years
Secretary, | year

Vice President, 3 years

President, 12 years

Youth Juvenile Justice TaskForce 2018-2019
Families First Implementation Member 2019-2022
Legislative Advocacy - ongoing
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KRISTI VAZIFDAR |
|

FINANCIAL EXPERTISE PROFILE
»  Financial Reporting ¢ Adynamic team leader who leverages positive energy, humor and
» Cash and Credit Management keen intelligence to inspire, motivate, and guide team members to
« Budget Creation and Analysis optimal success. '
«  Payroll Management ¢ Respected financial professional, with a proven record of success
« Strategic Planning driving operations for growth and maximizing cost efficiency.
+  Financial Training and * |Insightful and ethical MBA experienced with strategic planning for,
Management and management and analysis of, multi-million dollar budgets.
e Accounts Payable and -
Receivable -

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
NFI, North, Inc., Contoocook, NH, FEBRUARY 2016 — PRESENT

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Reporting to CEOQ, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization’s 18
million dollar annual operating budget in our sixteen programs across Maine and New Hampshire and managing a
staff of 5. Provides critical oversight over each aspect of financial operations including budget creation and
management.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council, Nashua, NH, DECEMBER 2015 —FEBRUARY 2016

INTERIM FINANCE MANAGER
~ Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization’s 13
million dollar annual operating budget serving Hillsborough County and managing a staff of 10.

Key Accomplishments:
¢ Provided program analysis to advise on future direction of resources.

e Manage accounting and finance issues including monthly close, revenue recognition and analysis, policy
interpretations, balance sheet reconciliations and daily productivity of all finances.

» Consolidated business team to save approximately 18% of departmental personnel costs.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2009 — MAY 2015

FINANCE DIRECTOR .
Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization’s 3.5
million doliar annual operating budget serving 4000 visitors annually. Manage 2 full time seasonal employees and
additional financial supervision of 5 seasonal employees. '
Key Accomplishments:

e Prepare and manage the annual budget and all financial reports as needed by the CEO, Finance Committee
and Board of Directors. ’

* Manage accounting.and finance issues including monthly close, Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable,
policy interpretations, balance sheet reconciliations and daily productivity of all finances.
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KRISTI VAZIFDAR

Prepare financial statements and reporting for CEO, Finance Committee and Board of Directors; including
monthly reconciliation of revenues and expenses, with appropriate variation explanations and analysis.

Critically evaluate new, or renewal contracts and annual corporate insurance policies for appropriateness.
Key contributor of 3 year (2011 — 2013 and 2014 — 2016) strategic plans, authoring the financial tactics.

Developed and executed a weekly matrix to analyze payroll for 110 seasonal hourly staff to successfully keep
seasonal salaries under budget for the past three years saving $30,000 plus annually.

Introduced seasonal weekly budget meetings with Department Heads to share updated financial information
and collaborate on seasonal budget management.

Created and implemented internal control and purchasing procedures.

Manage preparation and fieldwork for annual external audit process.

Star Island Caorporation, Partsmouth, NH, 2004 — 2008

BUSINESS & FINANCE MANAGER
Promoted to leadership role supporting all accounting and financial aspects of mainland and on island offices.

Key Accomplishments:

Created and implemented Finance Handhook as a guide for staff and Finance Committee.

Analyzed seasonal payroll and daily rate compensation structure, implemented time clocks to pay
nonexempt seasonal staff per hour saving 5% annually on seasonal payroll.

Leadership and day-to-day management of seasonal on island stores (book shop and lobby shop) purchased
all inventory, managed staff and all inventory controls.

Compile detailed information to prepare and submit-regulatory filings for town, state, federal.
Ensured compliance with audit standards and proper revenue recognition.

Staff liaison to Finance Committee.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2000 - 2003

ACCOUNTANT )
Hired to process Accounts Payable and Payroll reporting to the Executive Director

Key Accomplishments:

Assessed all accounting procedures and eliminated the need for external accounting firm.
Implemented cash management protocols to eliminate overdrafts and fees.

Researched, purchased and implemented new accounting software and revised General Ledger account
structure for efficiency.

Advised creation of Purchasing Agent position to consolidate staff workload and maximize productivity.

Wolf Coach Company (acquired by L3 Communications), Auburn, MA,
ACCOUNTANT, 1997 - 1999
OFFICE ASSISTANT, 1995 — 1997
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i COMPUTER SKILLS
Highly skilled in Excel, Proficient in MS Office including PowerPoint, Microsoft Dynamics Great
Plains and Management Reporter, Blackbaud Financial Edge, Fund EZ Accounting, Paychex
Paylink and Paychex Online Payroll, Apprentice level in Evolv and LWS|
Previous experience in QuickBooks Pro, and Peachtree Accounting (now Sage)

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT & VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE
Leadership Seacoast, Member Board of Directors June, 2015 — PRESENT;
Treasurer September, 2016 - PRESENT
Leadership Seacoast, Admissions Committee, 2014 - PRESENT
Leadership Seacoast, Program Graduate, 2013
4H, Judge for various competitions, 2013 — 2015
Barrington NH PTA 2011-2015

EDUCATION
Master of Business Administration, Southern New Hampshire University.
"Graduate Certificate in Accounting, Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Arts, Political Science, University of New Hampshire
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ABOUT ME

Experienced nonprofit leader in behavioral health and disability service systems
and program operations. Currently serving as the Executive Director of NF! North
overseeing the administration of agency operations, programs, strategic planning,
and ensuring the organization adheres to the agency mission and vision while
meeting financial objectives. Adept at fostering relationships with key
stakeholders, including board members, state partners, team members, and ’
participants. Well-rounded professional with experience in both operational,
administrative and financial operations, and driven by a focus on mission and
values. An effective communicator with the ability to translate complex
organizational goals into actionable plans, | am proud to bring visionary
leadership, operational excellence, and strateglc insights to the NFI North
Executive Director position. :

SKILLS &
ABILITIES

¢ Leadership & Organizational Development
» Financial Acumen
» Analytical Problem Solver

PROFESSIONAL
EXPERIENCE

NFI NORTH
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR January 1, 2024 - Present

Provide leadership and overall management for agency administration including
operations, finance, and strategic planning, working closely with the Board of
Directors. Responsible for ensuring the successful operation of agency programs
serving individuals through the life continuum. Collaborate with the Board of
Directors, agency management, business office operations, and key stakeholders
to achieve and maintain fiscal and programmatic excellence.

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER: April 2021 - December 2023

Oversee the program operations of Maine and New Hampshire services, as well as
IT and health record operations. Ensure agency compliance with Joint
Commission accreditation and standards, as well as state contractual
requirements. Support agency strategic plan goals and execution. Represent NFI
North with numerous stakeholders and state agencies, cultivating positive
relationships. Supervise program expansion and development opportunities.
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UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS, UNH INSTITUTE ON DISABILITY, START PROGRAM

July 2019 - April 2021
Provided operational and financial leadership for national START MH/IDD program
consultation, research, and program development.

MHMR TARRANT TX
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER, DISABILITY SERVICES

November 2005 - June 2019

Beginning as a case manager, progressively assumed leadership roles culminating
in a Chief Operations role for Disability Services for Texas’ second-largest
community mental health center (CMHC), serving over 4000 people monthly in
residential and community-based programs.

EDUCATION ANDERSON UNIVERSITY — PH.D CANDIDATE IN LEADERSHIP AND
ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Doctoral student in the Center for Leadership and Organizations with research
interests in organizational commitment and antecedent factors, leadership
empathy, mindfulness, and emotional intelligence factors.

Expected graduation: May 2025
UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS SYSTEM — MASTER OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Graduate business program with a focus on economics and analytics

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY — BACHELORS DEGREE IN PSYCHOLOGY

Major in psychology; minor in criminal justice

VOLUNTEER & TOWN OF HENNIKER,NH — BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE
COMMUNITY

ACTIVITIES Member of the Budget Advisory Committee reporting to the Board of

Selectpersons. The role includes financial analysis and recommendations to the
Board regarding the annual town budget prior to the town vote.

HENNIKER YOUTH ATHLETICS — COACH

Volunteer coach for youth baseball and basketball.

Page2 Luke Reynard
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PROFILE

* Motivated, determined, personable business professional, who is
dedicated, diligent and focused: Problem solver who is able to prioritize and
mults le'tatk, follow through in achieving goa&s and very much a risk taker.
» Biplomiatic and tactiul within both a professional and non-professional
setting: willing and able be introspective, assist others in huilding positive
relationships with those we serve and colleagues at all organizational levels.,
* Accustomed to handling sensitive, confidential records; able 1o
demaenstrate docurenting according to accuracy, and in a timely manner.

= Flexible and versatile team player open to learning new concepts quickly
while working well under prassure, and carmmunicating ideas clearly and
effectively.

* Strong leader providing regular supervision, encouragement and teaching
skifls to staff members.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Program Director
June 2021 - Present
NFI North Community Based Services

Responsibile for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake,
dischargs, counseling, service/discharge plars, fseal management, hiring and
terminating staff, marketing, and licensing of foster homes,

| 2008205

&

- : .

Real Estate Agent

April 2021-Prasent

Caron’s Gateway Real Estate

Gathers, provides, and explains details of current market conditions, pricing,
lepal requirements, and similarinformation. Assists selling clients with ?ricing
based on current market values. Assists clients with staging properties for
sale; hosts open houses and other promotional events,

Program Director

April 2018- June 2024
s NF North Array of Services; Davenport School and Residentisl Treatment
e Facility

4 ¥ -

Bsmimbmm; 1 Promoted 10 inanage a residential program and scheol lur ai-risk youth o
U N include a staff Leam of 40+ employees. Responsible for all clinical and
SPRINGFIELD COLLEGE : programmalic aperations, including intake, discharge, counseling,

R A B service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating staff,
o marketing, and licensing of faster homes

D201y
.. 8t Johnsbiry, VT
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PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE CONTD

Program Assistant Director
July 2013- April 2016

NFi North Array of Services; Davenport School and Residential Treatment
Facility

Support the Program Director in overalfi program operations. Oversee house
management and ensure safety of building and vehicles (supply ordering,
maintenance defegation and complete regular inspections). Actively éngape
with clients and staff to promote healthy relationships between
management, direct care staff and clients Responsible for staff supervision
and coordination of staff training

Shift Supervisor, Direct Care Counselor, Teacher's Aide
September 2007-luly 2013

NFI North Country Sheiter

Provide therapautic intervention services to clients using individual and group
treatment. Help coordinate and implement the carriculum for special
aducation teaching, following through with stutlents IEP's. Responsible fpr
the supervision of staff and overseaing miliay.

Owner/Manager

April 1989-Present

TANSUN Place Restaurant/Catering
Managed the overall performance of food service facility and kitchen
operations for sixteen years; directing the recruitment, interviewing, hiring,
training, motivation and evaluation of stafl. Continues to cater on an
individual basis,

.
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List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Confractor Name:

KEY PERSONNEL

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

NH Department of Health and Human Services

NFI North, Inc.

SALARY
Luke Reynard Executive Director $198,000.00
Jill Allen Chief Operating Officer $168,500,00
Kristi Vazifdar Chief Financial Officer $151,000.00
Jennifer Altieri NH Regional Director $21,800.00 $131,000.00
Deborah Weeks Assistant Regional Director $18,300.00 '$110,000.00
Noel Chipman Clincial Director $19,800.00 $116,500.00
TBD ; Program Director $87,000.00 $87,000.00
TBD Program Director $87,000.00 $87,000.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 3(2 B

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Lori A. Weaver . {29 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330]

Docusign Envelope JD: AAFBOES9-5E7A-4B2C-ADAS-7B4E307T40FEC

Commissioner _ 603-271-9544  1-800-852-1345 Ext. 9544
Fax: 603-2714332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhs.nh.gov
Katja S. Fox
Director

December 11, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Couricil

State House '

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Depariment of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sofe Source contract with NFI North, Inc. (VC#177575-B001), Contoocook, NH,
in the amount-of §3,299,847 to operate a sixteen-bed transitional housing for adults eligible for
community mental health services in accordance with NH Administrative Rule He-M. 400, Par
401, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years, effective January 1, 2024, upon
Govemor and Council approval, through June 30, 2025, 100% General Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years. through the Budget Ofﬁc':e, if needed and justified.

05-95-092-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH

SERVICES, CNMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

roiate | panest Class Title Job Number | Total Amount
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92204117 $1 ,314,601
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92204117 $1,085,246
| Subtotal | - $3,299,847

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source to provide the Department with sufficient time to competitively
bid for these services and to leverage the Contractor's unique qualifications and current presence
on the State Office Park South (SOPS) campus to provide these services efficiently and effectively
in continued close proximity to New Hampshire Hospital. The Contractor currently has several
members of léadership operating out of the Howard Recreational Building and oversees five (5)
transitional housing progrars operating on the SOPS campus. The Contractor is therefore
uniquely positioned to provide these services at this location until a vendor is selecled via a
competitive bid process.

The purpose of this request is to transition operations of the Philbrook Adult Transitional

Housing (PATH) program from the Department to the Contractor. This transition will enable the
Contractor to provide more structured and rehabilitation-focused transitional services for those
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Mis Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu’ ’ S
and the Honorable Council N - ) -
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awaiting discharge from NHH and allow the Department to transfer’current State employees from
PATH to NHH and reopen beds that have been unavailable due to staffing shortages. The

* - Contractor will operate the transitional housing program twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7)- -
. days per week for clients who are 1) eighteen (18) years of age or older and 2} eligible for

cornmunity mental health services in accordance with New Hampshire (NH) Administrative Rule
Chapter He-M 400, Part 401,

Apprommately sixteen (16) indiifiduals will be served anhually

The Contractor will provide housing and rehabilitative mental health services and supports
for - clients that "include: individualized resiliency and recovery oriented services;
psychotherapeutic services; targeted case management services, partial hospitalization services;
and medication related services, The Contractor will also provide assistance and instruction to
improve and maintain a client’s skills in basic daily living, personal development, and community -
activities, including: personal decision making; personal care, budgetmg. shopping, and other

_functional skills; household chores and responsibilities; and accessing a wide range of integrated

commumty activities.

The Department will monitor services by requiring the Contractor to maintain detailed
client: records as required by He-M 400, Part 408 and submit data necessary to comply with
federal reporting requirements. -

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached agreement the partles have the option to extend
the agreement for up two (2) -additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this requeet, the Department will be unable
to transition PATH operations %o provide more structured.and rehabilitation-focused transitional
services, as well as transition State employees who currently work at PATH to NHH and reopen

beds that have been unavailable due to staffing shortages.

Area served: Statewide. ] .

_ Respectiully submitted,
MO

Lori A. Weaver
Commissicner

™

The Depuriment of Health and Human Services’ Misston is lo join communities ond families
-ini providing opportinities for eftizens lo achieve health and independence. . T
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Subject: Transitional Housing Program {88-2024-DBH-33-HOUSI-01)

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become pubhc upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must

be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

:

AGREEMENT

1

1. IDENTIFICATION.

4

The State of New Hampshxre and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Nane

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address,

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Cont_rac'tor Name

.1.4 Contractor Address

40 Park Lane
5 Contoocook, NH 03301 -3857

NFI North, Inc; .

i

» { L5 Contractor Phone
Number

603-746-7550 ©

1.6 ‘Account Unit and Class

* [ 05-95-092-922010-41170000-1
02-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2025

1.8 Price Limitation
$3,299,847

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W, Moore, Director (603) 2719631

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

111 Contractor Signature

112 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory "

DocuSigned by: N . ”
(ke Mwi ) . Datgs 13/2023 |Luke Reynard coo
1.137" State Agenicy Signature 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
+DocuSigned by: B
Ketja S, Fex. D#47/13/2023  |Katja s. Fox |

Djrector

[ 115 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

.

< 1116 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (i applicable)
; ruccu.'.ﬂgnnd by:

©0nl45 1372023

......

G&C Item number;

Gé&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4

r C
Contractor Initials

Date 1271372023

LT
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. 2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™)
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
"goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is mcorporated herein by reference
(“Semces")

. 3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMFLETION OF SERVICES,
3.1 Notwithstanding any 'provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the - Govemor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, If applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall becomne effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in bloek 1,13
(“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any cbligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
" all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, afe contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
-~ the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in thi§ Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actuafly made
hereunder; exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance

3
-*

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.:

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-¢ or any other provision of law.

5.4 The State’s liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. ,

6.1 In connection with. the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal

- authorities which impose. any obligation or duty upon the

Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor’s order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01, In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexnal orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, r.elig'ious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements,

6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its

_representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be

made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.

6.4, The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL. B
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel

necessary to perform the Services, The Contractor warrauts thatall -

personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the )
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwxse authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any .

successor, shall be the State’s point of contact pertaining to this -
Agreement.

DS -
Page 2 of 4 - ) l {;K
Contractor Initials

Date 1271372023



Docusign Enve[ACipe ID: 8879895711460-4609-887B-8925DEF09F97

DocuSign Envelope ID; AAFBOESS-5E7A-4B2C-ADAS-784E30774CEC

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
* 8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or

8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occiirrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreetnent, effective two (2) calendar days
after gwmg the Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of

Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract prize which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period fiom

the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that -

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice spec:fymg the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owé
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; andfor

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice s_pemfy:ng the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9, TERMINATION.

9.1, Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agresment for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the coripletion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver fo the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State’s
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (13) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition pIan for Services under the Agreement.

10, PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.
10.1 Asused in this Apreement; the word “Property™ shall mean

ali data, information and things developed or obtained during the”

performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

-
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10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the | ‘

State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
-Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be retarned

- to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement

for any reason.

10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
govemed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law

D1sclosure requires prior written approval of the State. -

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to-bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers® compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12,1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen

(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or

other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

'12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall

constitute assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates,; becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting

shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the -
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of ©

the Contractor,

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor

without prior written notice and consent of the State.

12.4 The State is entitled to copies of zll subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assighment agreement to which it
is no! a party. i

*13, INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,

defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions,
judgments, fines, labilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attornéys’ fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,

or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence, -
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liabie

for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State’s

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the-

State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination

of this Agreement.
| | Eis
Contractor Initials

claims, damages, demands,

]
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14. INSURANCE, ‘ ‘
14,1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance: ' .

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggrepate oI eXcess;
and .

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of

New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued .

by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or-any’ successor, a certificate(s) of
‘insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS® COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
‘the requiréments of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers’
Compensation"). - . :

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcentractor or assignee fo secure and maintain, payment of
-Workers” Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall fumish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference, The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers’ Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers’ Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

'/

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party herelo to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in & United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

Page 4 of 4

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or

(discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties

hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or

_discharge by the Govemnor and Executive Council of the State of

New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy. :

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. ) )

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interproted and construed
in'accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The

wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the

parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party. .

192 Any actions arising out of this Agresment, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrithack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof,

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between
tife terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this A greement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THRIRD PARTIES, This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22, HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for _

reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement, : :

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying

provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated *

herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement

-and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25, SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect,

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter

hereof.
« DS
. l (K
Contractor Initials

Date 1271372023
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New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Program

N | ; EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisionsto Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effectlve Date/Completlon of Serwces is
. amended as fol[ows

3.1. Notwuthstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire, this Agreement, and all obllgatlons of the -
) partles hereunder, shall become effective on. January 1, 2024 (“Effective
- ) " Date™. : ) :
1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by deletlng
subparagraph 3.3 i in its enfirety and replacing it as follows:

"3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date spectf ied
in block 1.7. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2)
additional years from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

1..3. Paragraph 12, Ass:gnment/DeIegat;on/Subcontracts is amended by addlng
subparagraph 12.5 as follows: - .

. . 12.5.  Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcoritractor ™ .
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have -written
~agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed, -
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as nécessary. The Contractor shall .
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance

§5-2024-DBH-33-HOUSI-01 A-1.2 Contractor Initials E
. - 12/13/2023
NFI North, Inc. Page1ofi Date

7.14.23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services .
Transational Housing Program . y

- ExhibitB

- Scope of Services -

1. Statement of”Work

1.1. The Contractor shall operate a sixteen (18) bed Transitional Housrng Program in
Concord, NH at the State’s Anna Philbrook Center as described in the Premises Use
- Section of this Agreement.

1.2. The Contractor shall:

- 1.2.1.  Comply with all state and federal laws and regulations pertaining to the
licensure and operation of a community residential program;

. 1.2.2. Complete and maintain certification and licensure in accordance with NH
Administrative Rule He-M 1000, Housing, Part 1002, Certification Standards
for Behavioral Health Community Residences (hereinafter referred to as He-
M 1000, Part 1002), and NH Administrative Rule He-P 800, Residential Care
and Health Facility Rules, Part 814, Community Resrdences at the Residential
Care and Supported Residential Care Level (hereinafter referred to as He-P-
800, Part 814);

1.2.3." Adhere to Administration of Medication standards as.outlined In NH
Administrative Rule He-M 1200, Medication Standards, Part 1202,
Administration of Medications in Behaviora! Health Programs’ (heremafter
referred to as He-M 1200, Part 1202); and -

1.2.4" Be atall times in compliarice with apphcable policies and procedures adopted
by the Department and currently in effect, and as they may be adopted or
amended during the contract period.

1.3. Transitional Housing Program Requirements .

1.3.1. The Contractor shall operate a Transitional Housing Program (or ‘the
' "Program”) twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week for the
supervision for clients, who are:

1.3.1.1.  Eighteen (18) years of agé or older; and

1.3.1.2, Eligible for community mental health services in accordance with

New Hampshire Administrative Rule - Chapter He-M 400,
. Community Mental Health, Part 401, Eligibility Determination and
Individual Service Planning (herelnafter referred o as He-M 400,.
Part 401).

132. The Contractor shall operate the Transitional Housing Program to provide
housing and rehabilitative mental health servrces and supports for clients and
_ shall ensure:

1.3.2.1. Any bed is available to clients with and without insurance; and
1.3.2.2.  Any bed is available to clients regardiess of their ability to pay.

1.3.2.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure that no more than five (5)
percent of bed days are available to individugls: L\rﬁ hout
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f133

-1.3.4.

1.3.5.

1.3.6.

NFI North, Inc.

§5-2024-DBH-33-HOUSI-01

. commumty activities, that shall include, but are not limited to:

1362,

insurance.

The Contractor shall prowde the following services on an individual and group
basis, as necessary, in accordance with NH Administrative Rule He-M 400,
Community Mental Health, Part 426, Community Mental Health Services
(hereinafter referred to as He-M 400, Part 426);

1.3.3.1.  individualized Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Services;
1.3.3.2. - Psychotherapeutic Services, including sex offender treatment;
1.3.3.3. Térgeted Case Management Services; o

1.3.3.4. - Partial Hospitalization Services; and

1.3.3.5.  Medication Related Services.

The Contractor shall provide assistance and instruction to improve and
maintain a client's skills in basic daily living, personal development, and

1.3.4.1. Personal decision making. .

1.34.2.  Personal care, budgeting, shopping,.and other functional skills.

1.3.43.  Household chores and responsibilities.

1.3.4.4. Having-relationéhips with people with and without mental iliness.

1.3.4.5. Accessing a wide ran'ge of intégrated community activities
including recreational, vocational, and cultural. '

1.3.4.6. Participating in religious services and practices of the client's
choosing.

1.34.7. Choosing and wearing. clothlng that s neat, clean, in good repalr

and appropriate to the season and actnnty

The Contractor. shall provide the written processes for referrals, admissions,

gvaluations and discharges to the Department no later than thirty (30) days
from the contract effective contract date.

.The Contractor shall serve clients referred from New Hampshire Hospiial'

{NHH), Designated Receiving Facilities (DRFs), or Community- Mental Health
Providers (CMHP) who:

1,3.6.1. Have a severe mental illness (SMI} or severe and pefsistent
- mental illness (SPMI) and meet eligibility for community mental
health'services at a community mental health program ‘as defined

in He-M 400, Part 401;

Require extensive support and/or rehabilitation to successfully
transition from NHH or a DRF before moving to a less restrictive
_-alternative in the client's community of choice; and

. DS
Have been determined to_no longer require the Ieve{l care
Exhibit B
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pravided by NHH or a DRF. -

- 1.3.7.  The Contractor shall give clients from NHH first priority. of admittance to the
Transitional Housing Program followed by clients from DRFs and the CMHPs.
The Contractor shall: '

1.3.7.1. . Maintain a list of referred clients, in order of referral date for
whom admission is sought, but a bed Is not yet available;

1.3.'7.2.‘ Collaborate with the Department on the- data elements to be
captured in the list. The agreed upon list shall be made available
to the. Department weekly, at a minimum; and

1.3.7.3. Notify the Department, in writing, prior to enrolling non-NHH
' clients into the. Program.

1.3.8.  The Contractor shall develop and utilize a referral, admlssmn and evaluation °
process that: .

1.3.8.1. Pr:oritizes referrals from NHH over other referral sources;

1.8.8.2. Ensures that 75% of chents residing in the program at any time -
are referred from NHH;:

1.3.8.3. Provides for a written referral protocoi that includes a review and
evaluation of the client's current situation, assessment of need,
- and dlsposmon

1.3.8.4. Responds to all referrals, in writing, as to the client acceptance or-
denial into the Transitional Housing Program, ‘including an
explanation of any contingencies placed on the acceptance, or
the reasons for denial of the client;

1.3.8.5. Responds to the client, with a decision in writing, within fourteen
(14) business days of receipt with a copy to the Department;

1.3.8.6. Notifies the Department in writing of any accepted referrals prior
to admission and ftransition into the Transztuonal ~Housing
Program;

1.3.8.7. Includes an admission process approved by the Department that
ensures the successful entry of accepted referrals info the
program. [n the event that a referral is not successful in the
transition process, the Contractor shall communicate with NHH or
the agency that initiated the referral, verbally and in writing, as to _
the reason(s) for the unsuccessful transition; and .

1.3.8.8. Includes approval by the Department for all clients being referred
by the community.

1.3.8. The Contractor shall become an enrolled Medrcald provider through the
Department’s Medlcald program within 120 days of the effective contract date.

- 1310, In the event the Department incorporates Medicaid eligible Tr rﬁahonal-
NF! Nerth, Inc. Exhibit B Con_tractor Initials A .
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Housing Program(s} with its Managed Care Organizations, the Contractor
shall be notified by the Department and provided 120 days to enroll as a
- provider with the Managed Care Organizations for all Medicaid eligible
. Transitional Housing Programs. Proof of enrollment shall be provided to the
- Department within seven (7) days of enrollmént.

1.3.11. The Contractor shall have a discharge process for clients who are discharged
from the Transitional Housing Program that:

1.3.11.1.  Supporis a maximum stay of two (2) years per client, per episode, '
unless otherwise approved by the Department in writing;

1.3.11.2. Ensures participation iIn" discharge planning - meetings with
community mental health centers, NHH, other providers,
guardians, and natural supports; -

1.3.11.3.  Provides for a written discharge plan that includes an évaluation
of the client's current situation, disposition and transition plan for -
moving back into the community; '

1.3.11.4. Retainsthe client's bed, in-the event that:

1.3.11.4.1. . A client's conditional discharge is revoked, and the
: . clientis readmitted to NHH for up-to thirty (30) days;
and . :

1.3.11.42. A client is voluntarily readmitted to NHH for up to
; - thirty (30) days; and - '

1.3.11.5. Demonstrates development and implementation of a
collaborative relationship with the - community mental health
program and natural supports, including family, to develop the
terms of conditional discharges pursuant to RSA 135-C:50 and

- NH Administrative Rule He-M 600, New Hampshire Hospital, Part
s 609, Conditional Discharge, and to develop treatment plans
designed to return each client to the community.

1.3.12. The Contractor shall smeit:a transitional plan that addresses how clients will
transition back info the community to the Department no fater than thirty (30)
days from the contract effective date, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.3.12.1. Specific steps to move program participants into more integrated
’ community settings.

.1.312.2.  Aperson-centered plan that incorporates client needs, and safety
of clients and the public per Administrative Rule He-M 400, Part
401 and He-M 400, Part 408.

1.3.12.3. Coordination with the client's local community mental heaith
program, peer support agencies, and other natural supports to
provide other services and supports to-the client igs the

' community. [ o .
NF! North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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1.3.12.4. Involvement of the client's famlly o support mtegratlon mto the
community, with the client's consent.

. . 1.3.12.5.  |dentifi catlon of any barriers to placement in the commumty with
‘ = . . a plan to overcome those barriers, that emphasizes interventions
necessary to promote more opportunities for integration into the .
communlty v

1.4, Medical Services

1.4.1.  The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) registered nurse is_-
available during the hours of 8:00 AM (EST) to 10:00 PM (EST), Monday
through Friday, and 8:00 AM (EST) to 4:30 PM (EST) on Saturdays and
Sundays, or the availability of on-call nursing that is available to come on-site
during the weekends and evening hours. The Contractor shall ensure:

14.1.1.  Services are provided on site, or in an office setting providing
. - there Is no medical reason to provide the services on site;

14.1.2. Medical services include, but are not limited to:

. 1.41.21.  Anannual review conducted by the registered nurse
in consultation with the client's Primary Care
Physicidn, of:

1.4.1.2.1.1. Health history;
1.4.1.2.1.2. Health status;

1.41.2.1.3. Supports identified or needed to
maintain physical, mental, and social
well-being incorporating; and * °

. 1.41.2.1.4. Al Core Standardized Assessment
required domains.

) 1.4.1.2.2.  Instruction in, and assistance with, taking prescribed
medications independently, in accordance with He-
M 1200, Part 1202, Administration of Medications in
the Transitional Housing Program; and

1.4.1.3. Residential staff are trained to meet the requirements specified in
He-M 1200, Part 1202, Administration of Medications in the
Transitional Housing Program.

1.8, Spec;allzed Treatment

1.5.1. © The Contractor shall ensure sex offender services; risk assessment
evaluations; and treatment for clients who have co- occurring disorders, or

. require sex offender treatment, or other court-mandated treatments are
available, as necessary or as requested by the Department, ensuring services

are not unduly delayed or denied.

DS
1.6. Wellness Management : ‘ 14
NF| North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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1.6.1.

The Contractor shall support a culture of wellness and provide cllents with
access to services and activities, including but not Irmited to, “Healthy
Choices-Healthy Changes ?

1.7.  Adult Needs.and Strengths Assessment (ANSA)

1.7.1.

1.7.2,

1.7.3..

1.7.5..

1.7.6.

The Contractor shall ensure clinicians are certified in the use of the New
Hampshire version of ANSA 2.0, or other Department-approved ewdence-
based tool if they are a clinician serving the adult population.

The Contractor shall ensure clinicians obtain certification through the

- completion of the Praed Foundation test.

. The Contractor shall submit ratlngs to the Department via the database

managed for the Department in order to allow client-level, regional and
statewide outcome reporting by the 15th of every month, in ANSA format.

The Contractor shall ensure ratings generated by the New Hampshlre version
of the ANSA 2.0, or other Department-approved-tools are utilized fo:

1.7.4.1. Develop an individualized, person-centered treatment plan;

1.7.42. Document and raview progress toward goals and objectives and
assess continued need for community mental health services;
and :

1.7.43. . Assistin determmmg eI|g|blI1ty for State psychiatric rehabﬁ:tatuon

" services.

The Contractor shall document assessments’ using the New Hampshxre
version. of the ANSA 2.0, or other approved tool when conducting re-
assessments in accordance with the timeframes specified in He-M 401,

The Contractor shall ensure an alternate evidence-based approved
assessment meets all ANSA 2.0 domains'in order to meet consistent reporting

requirements. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.7.6.1. Written approval is received from the Department. pnor o
implementing a substitute for ANSA 2.0, and
1.7.6.2, Monthly reporting of data through the substitutad system includes

the ability to complete client-level, regional and statewide

reporting.

1.8. Pre-Admission Screening and Annual Residsnt Review

1.8.1.

1.8.2.

NFI-North, Ing. -

§5-2024-DBH-33-HOUSI-01

. intellectual disability in a nursing facility applicant or resident and sh

The Contractor shall assist the Depa&ment's Pre-Admission Screening and
Annual Resident Review (PASARR) Office to meet the requirements of the
PASARR provisions of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1987,

Upon request by the PASARR Office and with the appropriate authorization

to release information, the Contractor shall provide the PASARR Office with

the information necessary to determine the existence of mental atsss or
|

nduct
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]

1.9.

1.10.

1.12.

1.13.

" evaluations and examinations needed t'o prowde the data to determine ifa - -
-person being screened or reviewed requires nursing facility care and has
active treatment needs. @

Recovery and Resuiency Approaches

1.9.1.  The Contractor shall provide clients with access to services that promote the

: values of recovery and resiliency through an emphasis on a strength-based

approach and person-centered service planning, in accordance with NH
Administrative Rules He-M 400, Part 401 and He-M 400, Part 408.

1.9.2. . The Contractor shall utilize the client's individual service plan to aséist the
client with identifying, cultivating and sustaining relationships with peers,
family members, neighbors, landlords, employers, and others in order to’
create a network of support that will build resiliency and strength -based
"recovery and wellness skills.

Cdmplamt Manager Services -

1.10.1. The Contractor shall designate a staff member to perform the responsibilities
of complaint manager in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule
He-M 200, Practice and Procedure, Part 204, Rights Protection Procedures -
for Mehtal Health Services. )

. Access to Primary Care Physicians

1.11.1. The Contractor shall assist each client with éecuring 3 local primary care
physician (PCP) of the client's choosing, within thirty (30) days of admission:

1.11.2. The Contractor shall coordinate chent care with the PCP.

1.11.3. The Contractor shall exchange health information at regular infervals thh the
written consent of the client or guardian.

Coordinate Care with the Legal System

1.121. The _Cohtractor shall assess the legal commitment status of clients residing in
the program and, if deemed appropriate, provide for the continuation of the
commitment via the proper legal process. -

1.12.2. The Contractor shall pravide coordination of care with the legal system when’
. indicated, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.12.2.1. The NH Department of Corrections.

1.1 2:2.2_. The applicab]é NH County Attorney's Office.

1.12.2.3. The NH Attorney General's Office. A
Quality Assurance

1.13.1. The Contractor shall perform, or cooperate in the performance of, quality
improvement and utilization review activities as determined necessary and
appropriate by the Department, within timeframes specifiedﬁg the

-

Department, to ensure the efficient and effective administration gf the NH

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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Medicald program,. _
1.13.2. The Contractor shall ensure activities inciude, but are not limited to:

1.13.2.1. Maintaining detailed client records as requnred by He—M 400, Part
) 408,

1.13.2.2.  Submitting data necessary to comply with federal reporting
. : requirements.”

1.14. Client' Contribution for Clothing, Food and Housing
) 1.14.1. The Contractor shall ¢ ensure cllents are not required to sign residential ieases :

1.14.2. - The Contractor shall ensure clients are aware of and abide by shared house
rules.

1.14.3. The Contractor shall collect up to thirty (30) percent of each client's i income to
be applied toward the cost of housing and shall collect an additional amount;
subject to approval by the Department in writing, of each client's income to be
applied toward the cost of clothing, food, and other essential items. Financial
reporting and -analysis of client contributions shall be monitored by the
Department upon request, through the auditing of client accounts and
reconciliation of the Contractor's expenses charged to clients in comparison
to expenses charged to the Department for general fund reimbursement.

1.14.3.1.  Clients who are housed in Transitional Housing Program prior to
and during the transition of the Program to the Contractor shall
not have their monthly fee increased during thelr stay, except for
the reason of maintaining benefits.

1.14.4. The Contractor shall establish a policy in which the Contractor works with the
client on establishing a clothing and food allowance based on income and
address steps to support the client in preparation for, and management of, a
rent increase upon discharge, .

1.14.5. The Contractor shall provide a process and method for calculating, collecting,
and acceunting for the client's contribution and share of expenditures; and for
maintaining records for collections and expenses to the Department for
approval no later than ten (10} days from the contract effective date.

1.14.6. The Contractor shall ensure client contribution policies, processes and
methods are designed to support the client’s return to independent living while
providing alfowable client contributions toward the client's clothing, food and
_housing costs.

1.14.7. The Contractor shall ensure clients WlthOUt incomes are not denied entry to
the program due to an inability to provide a client contribution.

" 1.14.8. The Contractor shall ensure client funds in excess. of client contribution, if
malntalned by the Contractor, are kept separate from program operation
‘revenues and expenses, and in client-specific individual accounts. C

NFI North, Inc. . : Exhibit B " Contractor Inftials
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1.15. Staffing

1.15.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to" ensure the safety of
clients, staff, and the community.

1.15.2. The Contractor shall ensure staffing includes, but is not limited to:
1.15.2.1.  One (1) Medical Director who:

-1.15.2.1.1.. Possess a valid license to practice medicine in the
United States;

v 1.18.2.1.2. Possess a valid license to practice medicine in New
Hampshire; and meets the requirements of RSA
135-C: 2, XliI;

. 1.16.2.1.3. s Board-eligible or Board-certified in psychiatry

' according to the regulations of the American Board

. of Psychiatry and Neurology, Inc., or its successor -
organization at the time of hiring; and .

1.16.2.1.4. Maintained Board eligibility or certification
throughout his or her tenure as Medical Director.

1:156.2.2.  One (1) administrator or Director who is responsible for the day-
to-day management, supervision, and operation of the residence.

- 1.15.23. One (1) registered nurse, licensed in accordance with NH RSA
326-B, who is responsible for the’ dellvery and supervision of
nursing services.

1. 15 2.3.1. One (1) registered nurse,- as speclf' ed in
Subparagraph 1.15.2.3., may be on-call during
weekends and off-hours and shall provide telehealth

" and face-to-face services.

1.16.2.4. One (1) nurse frainer who provides supervision to any staff
. member authorized to administer medications.. .

1.15.2.5. A sufficient number of personnel who shall provide nursing
- services, consisting of registered nurses, licensed practical
nurses, and other staff. Nurses shall be Ilcensed as required by

RSA 326-8.

1.16.2.6. A sufficient number of direct care personnel who meet the twenty-
four (24) hour scheduled and unscheduled needs of the clients in
" . accordance with the individual client service plans, which includes
but is not limited to one (1) part-time peer support spacialist as
defined in NH Administrative Rule He-M400, Part 426.13 {d)(4)
during daytime programming hours.

1.15.3. The Contractor shall have a minimum of two (2) direct staff members. per shift,
when clients are occupying the residence. [
Contractor Initials
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-1.15.4. The Contractor sha[l provide a staffing contmgency plan to the Department for
approval within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date, which mcludes
but is not limited ta:

\1.15:4.1.-  The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of
key personnel or-other personné!l before or after signing of the
Agreement.

1.15.4.2.  Allocation of additional resources to the Agreement in the event
of inability to meet any performance standard.

1.15.4.3.  Discussion of time frames necessary for obtaining replacements;

R 1.15.44. Capabilities to provide, in a tnmely manner, replacements and
additions with comparable experience.

1.15.4.5. Method of bringing replacements and additions up—to-date
regarding this Agreement.

"4.16. Health Semces Staffing

1.16.1. The Contractor shall prowde and triage ‘health services for medical and
o psychiatric needs twenty-four (24) hours per day seven (7) days per week.

1.16.1.1.  The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) master's level
clinician is on-call evenings, weekends and holidays to provide:

1.16.1.1.1. Emergency treatment;
1.16.1.1.2. Crisis intervention,;

1.16.1.1.3. Coordination of Involuntary Emergency Admission

. petitions, in accordance with New Hampshire (NH)

= Revised Statute Annotated (RSA} 135-C:27 and NH
RSA 135-C:28; and

1.16.1.1.4. Coordination of revocation of conditional dis¢harges,
in accordance with NH RSA 135-C:51.

"1.16.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) registered.
nurse is available on-call the remainder of each day the master's
level clinician is not on-call, 1nc[ud|ng weskends and holidays, to
provide:

1.16.1 .2.1. Education;

1.16.1.2.2. Problem solving and support regardlng medicatlons
" ' and .

] 1.16.1.2.3, Response to health-related concerns.
- 1.17. Emergency Response Plan '

- 1.17.1.  The Contractor shall submit an Emergency Respbnse Plan for clients in the
~ event of a natural, intentional or accidental incident or threat that jﬁgg?&‘the

NFI North, Inc. : Exhibit B - Contractor Initials
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| B
I~
o :
client’s health and safety to the Departmient for approval within;ten (10) days

from the effective contract date. i

1.18. Housmg Specialist Services

1.18.1.

1.18.2.

1.18.3.

1.18.4.

1.18.5.

1.18.6.

1.187.

NFI North; Inc.

. Sé-2024~DBH-33-HOUSI-01 - : Page 11 of 25 | Déte .

.1.18.3.3.  Initial rental needs and resources.

The Contractor shall assist clients with- completmg applications'to all housing
programs.the client may be eligible for, ihcluding but not limited to, Housing -
Bridge Subsidy Program, Integrative Voucher Housing Program‘ and Housing
Cholce Voucher Program. | :

The Contractor shall complete criminal background checks and registered -
crrmrnal offender checks for all clients, as needed, for housing appllcations

The Contractor shall collaborate with the client to create: a housrng pian which
shall include, but is not limited to: ’

1.18.3.1. © Housing hrstory and community of choice preferences
1.18.3.2. Barriers to housing, including identified solutions. Il -

S ) |
1.18.3.4.  Benefits eligibility and status. i,

1.18.3.5. Information regarding community services as riequested and
needed, which may include, but is not limited to: i

1.18.3.5.1. Supportrve services. o i

|
1.18.35.2. Substance use disorder treatment N

' 1.18.3.6.3. Behavioral health care; psychiatric health care. -
|
. . !
1.18.3.5.6. Transportation services. t

1.18.35.4. Primary and medical health care.

1.18.3,6.6. Resources for obtaining groceries and other needed
household items. N

The Contractor shall assist the client with understanding teriant rights and
obligations, fair housing laws, and the role of landlords. |

The Contractor shall assist the client with identifying appropnafte housing and
with contacting potential landlords, as appropriate or as requested by the
client.

The Contractor shall attend appointments and meetings wrth; the client and
" the rental agency or renting landiord to negotiate rent, tilities, lease
provisions, and to ensure the client secures leases in their own name, with full
rights of tenancy.

The Contractor shall ensure successful transition to mdependent housing by
providing support to clients and landlords for no less than six (6) consecutive
months after discharge. ,

—DS
]
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- 1.18.8. The Contractor shall ensure their housing specialist participatesin-all trainings
conducted by either New Hampshire Housing Flnance Authonty or the
. - Department, as requested by the Department.

1.19. Meeting and Reporting Requirements

1.12.1. The Contractor shail meet with the Department quarterly, or as requested by

. - the Department, to review quarterly programmatic reporis s'ubmltted in a

- : format specified by the Department. The Contractor shall ensure _data
elements reported include, but are not limited to: !

1.19.1.1. Total number of vacant and occupled beds during:; the reporting
period.

1.19.1.2. Total number of individuals referred admitted, and dlscharged
: during the reporting period.

' . 1.19.1.3. - Region of origin prior to placement at the transmonal housing
- _— pragram for all admitted clients. i

1.19.1.4. Reglon of discharge from the transitional housing program for all
discharged clients, |

1.19.1.5. Legal status of all clients, such as pending charges, convictions,
involuntary emergency admission (IEA) status. |

- 1.19.1.6. A{ferage length of stay (LOS) for the prior six mon[ths, calculated
- ‘ Lt as the current date minus' admission date, | '

©1.19.1.7. Progress toward lndependent living for all clients, flncludmg
, - 1.19.1.7.1. Hospital readmission rate(s); . i
. 1.19.1.7.2. Projected discharge plans for each dlient;
1.19.1.7.3." Clinical updates; and ; "

1.19.1.7.4. Programmatic offerings, which may include, but are
not limited to: |

119.1.7.4.1, Social activities and otings.

1.19.1.7.4.2. Vocational support ser!\‘rices.
|
1.19.1.7.4.3. Wellness groups. !

1.19.2. The Contractor shall submit all required data elements via the Phoenlx system,
. except for the ANSA data, in compliance with current Phoemx reporting
specifications and transfer protocol provided by the Department

1.19.3. The Contractor shall make any necessary system change§ to comply with
annual Department updates to the Phoenix reporting specifications within 90
days of notification of the new requirements. When the Contractor is unable
to comply they shall request an extension from the Department that’
documents the reasons for non-compliance and a work plan with @" and

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit 8 - Contractor Initials
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timelines to ensure compliance.

. 1.19.4. The Contractor shall submit individual chent-level demographlc and encounter
’ data, including non-billable individual-specific services to the Department's
| . Phoenix system or on an altemnative format identified by the Department, as
: specified by the Department. .

1.19.5. The Contractor shall ensure all client data submitted thcludes a Medicaid ID
- . number for clients enrolled in Medicaid and data elements that include, but
* are not limited to: .

" 1.19.51. Client's housing staﬁus” upon discharge.
L. 1.19.5.2.  Employment status.
: . ) 1.18.6.3. Smoking status. .
' 1.19.5.4. Mental health and substance use disorder(s) diagnoses.

1.19.6. The Contractor shall submit monthly data no later than the fifteenth (15th) of
each month for the prior month's data, unless otherwise approved by the
" Department in writing.- :

1.18.7. The Contractor shall review the Department’s tabular summaries within five
(5) business days of the summaries becoming available.

1.19.8. The Contractor shall ensure submitted data represents a minimum of:
1.19.8.1. Ninety-eight (98) percent of billable services provided; and .
1.1 9.8,2. Ninety-eight (98) percent of clients served by the Contractor.

1.19.9. The Contractor shall ensure submitted service and member data | conforms
to submission requirements, at a minimum of:

1.19.9.1.  Ninety-eight (98) percent of the data records; and
1.19.9.2.  All unique member identifiers shall be accurate and valid.

1.19.10. The Contractor shall submit quarterly program status reports to the
Department no later than the 15th of the month foliowing ‘the quarter as
outlined and identified by the Department.

1.19.11. The Coniractor shall participate in monthly compliance meetings with the
" Department, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

1.19.12. The Confractor may be required to provide other key data and metrlés to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance and serwce
data. i

1.20. Performance Measures

-1.20.1. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

Ds
NF1 North, Inc. Exhibit B : Confractor Initials C
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1.21. Backg'round Checks

1.21.1.

Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this Agreement,
the Contractor must ensure that said individual has undergone:

1.21.1.1. A criminal background check; at the Contractor's expensé, and .
has no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of behavior
that could endanger individuals served under this Agreement; and .

1.21.1.2. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly and Adult

. Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to RSA 161-F:49, with
results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger,-
individuals served under th1s Agreement.

1.22. Confidential Data - !

1.22.1.

1.22.2,

The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requiremerits
as set by the Department and in accordance with the Department's
Information Security Requirements Exhibit as referenced below.

The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering services
through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing to access, view,

store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance with federal and state laws

and regulations and the Department's Information Security Requirements

. Exhibit. The Contractor must ensure said individuals have a justifiable

business need to access confidential data. The Contractor must provide
attestations upon Department request.

l1 .23. Privacy Impact Assessment

. 1231

1.23.2,

_ processing or storage of PII.

Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in

cconducting a  Privacy Impact Assessment "~ (PIA) of its

system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the Contractor, if
Personally [dentifiable Information (Pll) is collected, used, accessed, shared,
or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must provide the Department-
access to applicable systems and documentation sufficient to allow the
Department to assess, at minimum, the following:

1.23.1.1. How PIl is gathered and stored;
1.23.1.2.  Who will have access to PIil:
1.23.1.3. How Pl will be used in the system;

1 1.231.4.  How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

1.23,1.5. . Privacy practices.

- The Department may conduct follow-up PlAs in the event there are either

significant process changes or new technologies impacting the -collection,

1.24. Department Owned De\nces Systems and Network Usage

NF1 North, Inc.
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1.24:1. If Contractor End Users defined in the Department's Information Secunty
. " Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into this Agreement, are authorized
- by the Department’s Information Security Office to use a Department issued
device (e.g. computer, tablet, mobile telephone) or access the Department
network in the fulfilment of this Agreement, each End User must;” :

1.24.1.1.  Sign and abide by applicable Depariment and New Hampshire
Department of Information Technology (NH DoIT) use
agreements, policies, standards, procedures and guidelines, and
complete applicable trainings as required,;

1.24.1.2.  Use the information that they have permission to access solely for
conducting official Department business and agree that all other
use or access is strictly forbidden including, but not limited, to
personal or other private and non-Department use, and that at no
time shall they access or attempt to access information without
having the express authority of the Department to do so;

. 1.241.3. Not access or attempt to access information in a ‘manner-
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures, -andfor
agreement relating to system entry/access; -

1.24.1.4.  Notcopy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse engineer,

rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or being evaluated by

. . the Department, and at all times "must use utmost care to protect
and keep such software strictly confidential in accordance with

the license or any other agreement executed by the Department;

¥ - 1.24-.1:5, Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s) authorized by
the Department’s Information Security Office or designes;

1.24.1.6.  Not install.non-standard software on any Department equipment
‘ .unless authorized by the Department's Information Security
Office or designese;

1.24.1.7.  Agree that email and other electronic communication messages
created, sent, and recelved on a Department-issued email system
are the property of the Department of New Hampshire and to be
used for business purposes only. Email is defined as “Internal
email systems” or "Department-funded email systems;”

1.24.1.8. Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH DolT
policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

1.24.1.9.  Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:

1.24.1.9.1." To only use a Department email address assigned
to them with a "@ affiliate. DHHS.NH.Gov";

1.24.1.9.2. -Include in the signature lines information Identifying
the End User as a non-Department - werkforce -
- - member; and T

NFI North; Inc. . ] ) Exhibit B Cbntractor Initials
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1.24.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is
i K embedded underneath the signature line: "

1.24.1.9.4. CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: “This
g message may contain information that
is privileged and confidential and is
intended only for -the use of the
individual(s) to whom it is addréssed. If
you receive this message in error,
; . ) please notify the sender immediately
. and delete this electronic message and
. any attachments from your system.

Thank you for your cooperation.” -~

1.24.1.10. Contractor End Users with a Department issued email, access or
potential access to- Confidential Data, and/or a workspace ina
Department building/facility, must:

1:.24.1, 1 0.1. Complete the Department's Annual Information
Securlty & Compllance Awareness Training prior to
accessing, viewing, handling, hearing, -or
transmitting Department Data or Confidential Data;

1.24.1.10.2. Sign. the Department's Business Use and
’ Confidentiality Agreement and Asset * Use
Agreement, and the NH DolT Department wide
Computer Use Agreement upon execution of the

. Agreement and annually thereafter; and -

: i 1.24.1.10.3. Only access the Department's intranet to- view the
' Department's  Policies and Procedures and
Information Security webpages.

1.24.1.11. Contractor agrees, if any End User is found to be in violation of
any of the above terms and conditions, said End User may face
removal from the Agreement, and/or criminal and/or civil
prosecution, if the act constitutes a violation of law.

1.24.1.12. Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimum of three
business days prior to any upcoming transfers or terminations of
End Users who possess Department credentials and/or badges
or who have system privileges. If End Users who possess
Department credentials and/or badges or who have system
privileges resign or are dismissed without advance notice, the
Contractor agrees to notify the Department’s [nformatlon Security
Office or designee immediately.

1.24.2. Workspace Requirement

1.24.21. I '.applicable, the Department will work with Con chor to
- determine requirements for providing necessary works and
NFI North, Inc. . . Exhibit B . Contractor Initials
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State equipment for lts End Users.

1.25. Contract End-of-Life Transition Ser\ﬂces

1.25.1. General Requirements - . e

1.26.1.1.

e

1.25.1.2.

1.25.1.3.

1.25.1.4.

If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Agreement the
parties agree to cooperate in good faith fo effectuate a smooth
secure transition of the Services frorn the Contractor to the
Departmerit and, if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the
Department to assume the Services previously performed by the
Contractor for this section the new Contractor shall be known as
“Recipient”). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or
unless otherwise specified by the Department, the Contractor
must begin working with the Department and if applicable, the
new Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP). The
Department shall provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

Thé Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the-

Recipient, in connection with the transition from the performance

of Services by the Contractor and its End Users to the
performance of such Services. This may include assistance with
the secure transfer of records (electronic and bhard copy),
transition of historical data (electronic and hard capy), the

. transition of any such Service from the hardware, software,

network and telecommunications equipment and internet-related

" information technology infrastructure (“Internal IT Systems”) of

Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the Recipient and -
cooperation with and assistance té any third-party consultants
engaged by Recipien{ in connection with the Transition Services.

If a system, database, hardware, software, andfor software
licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to manage, track,
and/or store Department Data in relationship to this contract said
Tools will be inventoried and returned to the Department, along
with the inventory document, once transition of Department Data
Is complete.

The internal planning of the Transmon Services by the Contractor
and its End Users shall be provided to the Department and if
applicable the Recipient in a timely manner. Any such Transition
Services shall be deemed to be Services for purposes of this

- Agreement.

1.25.1.5.

NF| North, Inc.
$8-2024-DBH-33-HOUSI-01

Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Infermation Security
Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's Business
Associate Agreement terms and conditions remain in effect until
the .Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Depﬁent.
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1.25.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comiingled Department
T Data and the destruction or Transition of said data is not feasible,
the Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
. professional standards for retention requirements prior to
destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of thé Department’
DHHS Information Security Reqmrements Exhibit. |

1 25.2. Completion of Transition Services

1.25.21. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed completed
(and the Transition process finalized) at the end. of 15 business
days after the product, resulting from the Service, is delivered to
the Department and/or the Recipient in accordance with the
mutually agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said 15
business day term the Contractor notifies the Department of an
"issue requiring additional time to complete said product.

1.2522. Onceall parties agree the data has been migrate.d' the Contractor
will have 30 days.to destroy the data per the terms and conditions
of the Department’s Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.25.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.25.3.1. Inthe event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the
Transition Service, the Department shall notify the Contractor, in
-~writing, stafing the reason for the lack of satisfaction within 15
" business days of the final product or at any fime during the data.
Transition process. The Parties shall discuss the actions to be
taken to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not
reached, at' any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate -
actions in accordance with the Agreement.

2. Exhibits Incorporated : ‘.

2.1. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibit D Federal Requirements, which are
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

. 2.2. The Contractor must manage .all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit E, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance with
the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentifiable Health Information (Privacy Rule)
(45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with -the attached Exhibit F, Business
Assoclate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

3. Additional Terms k_
3.1. Impacts Resulfing from Court Orders or Legisiative Changes

" 31.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal Ieglslag nor
court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein,[the State-

NF{ North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure reqmrements under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith. . :

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and ngmstlcally Appropnate
Programs and Semces .

3.21.

. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement Effective . .

Date, a detailed description of the communication_access and fanguage
assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access to programs
and/or services to individuals with limited English proficiency; individuals who

-are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or have-low vision;

and individuals who have speech challenges. -

3.3. Credtts and Copynght Ownership

3.3.1.

3.3.2,

'3.3.3.

3.34.

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials
prepared during or resulting_from the performance of the services of the
Agreement must include the following statement, “The preparation of this
(report, document etc.) was financed under an Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided
in part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding scurces as
were avallable or required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and
Human Services.”

All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or use.

The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to;

3.3.3.1.  Brochures.
3.3.3.2." Resource directories.
3.3.3.3. - Protocols or guidelines. ) -

© 3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

The Contractor must not reproduce any materrals produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1.

NF! North, Inc.
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In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor must
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty upon the contractor with
respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit must be required. for the
operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services, the
Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times cpE‘ with
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the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with.
. the foregoing requirements, the Contractor héreby covenants and agrees that,
i during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with all rules,
* orders, regulations, and requwements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal
- and the local fire protectton agency, and must be in conformance with local
building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

- -

J 3.5. Eligibility Determinations

3.5.1. The Contractor must make ellglbillty determtnatlons in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, gwdellnes policles and
procedures.

3.5.2. The Conftractor must ensure all applicants are permitted to fiII out an
application form and must notify each applicant of their right to request a fair
hearing in accordance with New Hampshire RSA 126-A 5 and Department
regulations.

4, Records
" 4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

41.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected by the
Contractor.

- - 4.1.2.  Allrecords must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and :
. practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses,
c _ and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, .
- ' all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase
) requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls and other
records requested or required by the Department

41.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
) services, which records must include all records of application and eligibility
‘ (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the
Department to obtain payment for such services. -

4.1.4. Medical records on each patiénb’recipi'ent of services.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
© Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of
thelr deslgnated representatives must have access to all reports and records m.alntamed
pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

4.3. K upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the,Department must disallow any
’ expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department n s the
right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are dlsailogor to

NFI North, Inc. i Exhibit B . Contractor Initials
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recover such sums from the Contractor,

5. Premises Use

51. The Contractor and the Department agree that the Coniractor shall have access to use
certain designated premises (the “Designated Premlses") within the State of New
Hampshire's Anna Philbrook Center located at 121 South Fruit Street, Concord, NH
03301 for the purpose of providing the Transitional Housing Program, as foliows:

g '5.1.1. The Designated Premises are limited to the Philbrook Adult Transitional
. Housing (PATH) wing of the State of New Hampshire’s Anna Philbrook Center:

5.1.2. The Contractor may use Granite and Lakes Conference Rooms outside of the
Designated Premises by appointment in coordination with the Department;

5.1.3. The Contractor's staff may access common areas out5|de of the Designated
Premises; and

B

5.1.4. The Contractor will not have access to NHH offices.

5.2.  Any equipment in the facility upon transition may be.used by the Contractor for: the'-
duration of the agreement. The Contractor assumes responsibility for equipment-and
must repair or replace any equipment that becomes unusable due to damage. Any
equipment that' becomes unusable due to regular wear and tear may be disposed of
with written consent from the Department. The Contractor must returm aII equrpment to
the Department upon termination of the Agreement.

5.3. The Contractor agrees that routine bualdlng maintenance is defined as normal wear and
tear of the building structure, envelope, systems, hardware, and fixed assets (not
including kitchen appliances): Routing bullding maintenance does not include damage -
resulting in abuse or neglect by the Contractor or its agents, consumers and visitors,

5.4. The Contractor shall:

5.41. Assign a liaison and backup to develop a Maintenance and Housekeeping
- Checklist for routine repairs and maintenance needs. The Maintenance and -
Housekeeping Checklist will be available for the Department to review and
prioritize during the monthly inspection conducted by ‘the Departrment.
Liaisons will be the only persons who shall contact New Hampshire Hospital
Facllities or Environmental Services Offices;

5.4.2. Designate a liaison to be responsible for all keys, to include dlstributlon
tracking, and communication with the New Hampshire Hospital Facllities
Office for lock repair or key replacement;

9.4.3. Be responsible for routine household tasks, such as, moving of furniture;
changing Ilght bulbs, and minor plumbing repairs, such as, toilet unclegging;

544. Be respons‘nble for housekeeping in accordance with checklist references in
Paragraph 5.4.1. above;

545. Be responszble for mamtenance, repairs, and rep]acement of State rgparty .
made available for the Contractor's use: [ .

NFI North, Inc. . Exhibit B = Contractor Initials
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5.5.
5.6.
5.7.

5.8.

5.9,

$8-2024-DBH-33-HOUSI-01 Page 22 of 25 | ) Date

. Contract, the Contractor shall promptly upon receipt of notice from the Sta
NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials

5.4.6. Be responsible for window air conditioners maintenance, repairs, and
replacement;

547. Be responSIble to call State Off ce Complex Police if there is-an emergency
requiring maintenance after normal business hours; ;

5.48. Be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of household
appliances, such as refrigerators, dishwashers, washer and dryer, and stoves;

54.9. Conduct monthly fire extinguisher inspections, in coordination with Hospital
Facilities Office. Malntain, or replace the extinguishers annually as necessary;

5.4.10. Be responsible for any damage due to occupancy, or leasehold improvements,
inciuding interior painting and floor covering repair or repIaCement Inno case
shall the Contractor make improvements without the written permission of the
New Hampshire Hospital Facilities Office;

54.11. Usethe Department’s Information Technology (IT) cables only as approved
« *,  bythe IT Department;

5.4.12. Pay for the personal alarm ("Life Alert") system, if applicable'k

5.4.13. 'Be responsible for the purchase, supply, laundering, and management of all
linens (sheets, pillowcases, bath towels, and face cloths);

6.4.14. Be responsible for the maintenance of client Wireless Internet services; - '
5.4.15. Be responsible for laundering ahd management of all c[ienfpersona[ ftems;
5.4.16. Ensure all buildings are reasonably maintained, kept sanitary, and clean;

5.4.17. Ensure all buildings are free of pests and notify NHH Fac:llltles if additional
pest control services are required; and .

5.4.18. '-Dlspose of recycling materials.

The Contractor shall have the right to utlllze the onsite parklng lots and acknowledges
that no reserved parking is provided as part of this Agreement.

The Contractor confirms the premises has. been inspected and the condition of the
premlses is acceptable.

The Contractor shall obtain written consent from the State of New Hampshire prior to
performing or constructing any additions, alterations or improvements fo the premises.

The Contractor shali ensure all work, repairs, renovations, or replacements approved
by the State In Paragraph 5.4.5. are guaranteed by the vendors completing the work,
against defects resulting from the use of inferior materials, equipment or workmanshlp

“for one (1) year from the date of complstion of the work.

The Contractor shall ensure that if, within any guarantee period, repairs or changes are
required in connection with guaranteed work, which in the opinion of the State of New
Hampshire is rendered necessary as a result of the use of materials, equipment or
workmanship which are inferior, defective, or not in accordance with the telﬁaf the

New

12/13/2023
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*

Hamp'shfré, and at the Contractor's own expense: :

. 5.9.1. Placé in'satiSfactory condition in every particular, all guaranteed ‘Kw.ork and
correct ail defects therein;

59.2. Make good all damage to the building or site, or equipment or contents thereof, " '

which in the opinion of the State of New Hampshire, is the result of the use of
materfals, equipment or workmanship which are inferior, defective, or not in
accordance with the terms of the Contract; and ) ;

5.9.3. Make good any work or material, or the equipment ‘and contents of said
building or site disturbed in fulfilling any such guarantee.

. 5.94. Replacement and repair of movable equipment and appliances, including
refrigerators, exercise equipment, and similar items will be the responsibility
of the Contractor. ' :

’ ) 5.10. The Contractor Is responsible for all repairs due to wear or-negligence on the part of
the Ceontractor, ite_‘. employees, assignees, or guests,

5.11. The Contractor shall be subject to general supervision by the State of New Hampshire.
The Contractor shall be subject to rules and regulations prescribed by the State of New
Hampshire including, but not limited to, meeting the requirements of the Department's
Health Facilities Administration,, and the State of New Hampshire Public Works
Department.

5,12, The Contractor shall protect, repair, and maintain' the premises in good order and
- condition and shall exercise due diligence in protecting the premises against damage
or destruction by fire, vandalism, theft or other causes. . ‘

5.13. The Contractor shall at all times during the term of this Agreement, promptly observe
and comply with the provisions of all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules,
regulations, and standards, and in particular those provisions concerning the protection
and -enhancement of environmental quality, pollution control and abatement, safe
drinking water, life safety systems and solid and hazardous waste. ‘

5.14. Should the Contractor discover any violations to applicable federal, state and local laws,
rules, regutations or standards, the Contractor shall report the violations immediately to_
the Department and, at their own expense, be responsible for any costs incurred as a
result of the violation of the aforementioned federal, state and local laws, rules and..
regulations 'and standards. :

5.15. The Contractor agrees that any agency of the State of New Hampshire, its officers,

agents, employees, and contractors may enter the premises,” at all times (with

-reasonable notice) for any purpose, including inspection, and the Contractor shall have

no claim on account of such entries against the State of New Hampshire or any officer,
agent, employee or contractor thereof.

5.16. The State shall not be responsible for damage to property or injuries to persons which
may arise from or be attributed, or incident to the exercise of the privileges_granted

under this Agreement, including the condition or state of repair of the premisp&-gad its
use and occupation By the Contractor, or from damage to their property, or d rﬁ@ga to
" NFINorth, Inc. ’ Exhibit B * Conlractor Initials Ao )
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5.17.

L

the property, of injuries to the persons of the Contractor or any officers, employees,
servants, agents, contractors, or others who may be at the premises at their invitation'
or the invitation of any one of them arising from governmental activities at the premises.
The Contractor expressly waives all claims against the State of New Hampshire for any .
loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring by reason of or incident
to the possession or use of the premises or as consequence of the conduct of act[wtles
or the performance of responmbﬂ:ttes under this Agreement. .

The Contractor agrees, to mdemnlfy, save, hold harmless and defend the State and the
State of New Hampshire, thelr officers, employees and agents from and against all
suits, claims, or actions of any sort resulting from, related to or arising out of any
activities conducted under this Premises Use Agreement section and any costs,
expenses, liabilities, fines or penalties resulting from discharges, emissions, spills,
storage, disposal or any othier action by the Contractor giving rise to liability to the State
or the State of New Hampshire, civil or ¢riminal, or responsibi[ity underfederal, state or.

. local environmental laws. This provision shall survive the explratlon or termination of

5.18.

5.18.
i “assigned. The Contractor agrees that on the Completion Date of this Agreement, it

- 5.20.

5.21.

NF! North, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials
$8-2024-DBH-33-HOUSK01 ~ ~ Pagei24 of 25 . "Date

this Agreement and is not intended to waive the State's sovere|gn immunity, which is
hereby reserved by the State. .

The Premises Use section of this Agreement is effective only insofar as the nghts of .
the Contractor in the premises involved are concerned, and the Contractor shall obtain -
such permission as may be necessary on account of any other existing rights.

The terms of the Premises Use section of this Agreement shall not be transferred or

shall vacate the premises and shall, remove all personal property and restore the’
premises to a condition satisfactory to the State, with damages-beyond the control of
the Contractor and due to ordinary wear and tear excepted. If the Contractor neglects
to remove their personal property and to so restore the premises, then at the option of
the State, .such property shall either become property of the State without compensation
therefore, or the State may cause property to be remeved and the premises to be so
restored at the expense of the Contractor, and no claim for damage against the State ~
or its officers, employees or agents shall be created by or made on account of such
removal and restoration work.

The Contractor and the State agree thet no notices, orders, directions, determinations,
requirement consents, or approvals under this Agreement shall be of any effect unless
it is in writing. All notices to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be addressed to
the State:

New Hampshire Hospital ‘ . .
Attn: Director of Facilities x

36 Clinton Street

Concord, NH, 03301 ,

The Departmént’s New Hampshire Hospital shall:

5.21.1. Conduct scheduled preventative maintenance inspections and repdirs for all

12/13/2023
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heh

eqmpment to include, heating and cooling systems sump pumps plumbing
oo fixtures, dralns, and backflow preventers;

5.21.2. Rep[ace. as needed, equipment to include, heating and cooling systems,
- sump pumps, plumbing fixtures, drains, backflow preventers, and generators;

5.21.3, Maintain all electrical wiring and related hard-wired lighting, receptacles and
panel board fixtures;

5.21.4. Maintain all fire protection related equipment, except fire extinguishers;

5.21.5. Respond fo requests for routine maintenance during normal busmess hours.'
Monday through Friday 7:00 AM - 3:00 PM; '

5.21.8. Respond immediately to emergency maintenance requests that threaten the
health and safety of consumers, staff, and property as needed, twenty-four
(24) seven (7) days per week;

5.21.7.  Tourthe building as ﬁ’eeded, or requested to inspect the building and to review -
_and prioritize the Maintenance Checklist developed by the Contractor Liaison;

5.21.8. Provide-monthty teeting of each generator and egress lighting, and provide
the Contractor with written documentation of the testing and results;

5.21.9. Conduct fire drills in accordance with applicable compliance regulations, and
provide the Contractor with written documentation of the test and resuits;

5.21.10. Conduct spriniler inspections in accordance with applicable local, Stats, and:
. federal regulations, and provide the Contractor with written documenta’non of
the test and results;

5.21.11. State Office Complex Police will provide Police Coverage and Protection;

5.21.12. Moniter Transitional Housing Semces environment via the building
autormnation system; -

5.21.13.. Clean kitchén exhaust ductwork on an annual basls; and

5.21.14. Maintain locks and replace lost or damaged keys at a price to be determmed
A 7 .. bythe Hospital. :
5.22. The Department shall provide ground maintenance, deﬁned as the following:
5.22.1. Mowing of lawns; "
5.22.2. Maintenance of trees, bushes, and shrubs; and

5.22.3. Plowing of roads and parking lots.

Ds
NFI North, Inc. Exhibit B ; Contractor Initials @
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‘Payment Terms

1.% This Agreement is funded by: | g B
. 1.1.  100% General funds. +
2. For the purposes of this Agreement; )

21. The Division for Behavioral Health’ (Department) has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.330,

2.2, The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR .§200.87. . -

3. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for services provided to -
individuals pursuant to this Agreement as follows: .

- 3.1.For Medicaid enroiled individuals through the DHHS Medicaid Fee for
" Service program in accordance with the current, publically posted Fee for
Service (FFS) schedule located at www.NHMMIS,NH.gov.
3.2.For Managed Care Organization enrolled individuals the Contractor shall
be reimbursed pursuant to the Contractor's agreement with the applicable
Managed Care Organization for such services.
3.3.Fcr individuals with other health insurance or other coverage for the
services they receive, the Contractor w1II directly bill the other i insurance or
& payors.
"~ .3.4.For mdlwduals ‘without health insurance or other coverage for the services
they receive-and for operational costs contained in Exhibit C-1, Budget,
- through Exhibit C-2, Budget for which the Contractor cannot othenmse
seek reimbursement from an insurance or third-party payer, the Contractor
will directly bill the Department to access contract funds provided through
this Agreement.

3.4.1. Invoices of this nature-shall mc[ude general ledger detail mdlcatmg
the Department is only being invoiced for net expenses, shall only :
be reimbursed up to the current Medicaid rate for the services
provided and contain the fo]lowmg iterris for each client and line
item of service: .

“3.4.1.1. First and last name of client.
3.4.1.2. Date of birth.
3.4.1.3. 'M'edipaid iD number.

3.4.1.4. Date of Service identifying date, units, and any pdssible
third-party reimbursement received. -

4. Payment shali be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures mcurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved
line items as specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit G-2, Budggt:

NFlNorth, Ine. - Exhibit C Contractor Initials »—
' o 12/ 13/ 2023 |
ate

§5-2024-DBH-33-HOUSI-01 - Page 1of 3



Docusngn Enve[ope ID: B8798957-146C-4609-B87B- 8925DEF09F97

DocuSign Envelope 1D AAFBOEBQ-SE?A—4B2C—AOA5 7845307740EC

3

New Hampshrre Department of Health and Human Services
Transrtlonal Housing Program

EXHIBITC

v

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting documents to the
- Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month fo!lowmg
the rionth in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall:

. 5.1. Ensure the invoice is submitted in a form that is. provided by the
Department or is otherwise acceptable to the Department.

- 6.2. Ensure the invoice identifies and requests payment for allowable
- costs incurred in the previous month. ,

5.3. Provide supportmg documentation of allowable coSts with each

v invoice that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll
45 ) records, receipts for purchases, and proof of expendlture as
o applicable. . ,

_ 5.4. Ensure the invoice is. completed dated and returned to the
B Department with the supporting documentatlon for " authorized -
expenses, in order to initiate payment..

6. . Inlieu of hard- copies; all invoices may be assigned an e'lectronic sighature and
emarled DHHS. DBHInvmcesMHS@dhhs nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Tanja Godftfredsen

Department of Health and Human Servrces -
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. The State shall make payment tothe Contractor within thirty (30) days of recelpt

-of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if

sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

8. Thefinal invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.7.
Completion Date. _

9. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Servrces in
compliance with funding reqmrements

10. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be wrthheid in
whole orin part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions .
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

11. Notwrthstandlng anything fo the contrary hereln the Confractor agrees that
funding under this agréement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compllance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and condltlons of this
agreement.

NFI North, Ine. . Exhibit C . ‘Contractor Initials !
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12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes

limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation ‘and adjusting

' . encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the

Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without

obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified, ] . :

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor Is-required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, Ill-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more. -

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit. -

13.2. . If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an"annual single audit

" performed by-an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the

Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal

year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part

200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, .

13.4. 'Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than-
" $250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardiess
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

" . 13.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department ali payments made under the
Contract to which exception has. been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

C
NFI North, Ina. ~ Exhibit C Contractor Initials :
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R i Exhibt C-1, Budget .
’ New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
i : ) Comp!ete oneb dg t fo mfor each budget period. .
. Contractor Name:}: ! NFL:Narih, Inc
- Budget Request for: = Lo N UCPATH tanstion
) Budget Period ' s
indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)[1
. 1. Salary&Wages T L 84,663, ,765, S §264, 098
. 2. Fringe Benefiis E Ber ST ,385. | =" __Tgen1,897 |- g $04,488
3. Consuitanls » e iy 00 |+ . ° " $14,800-
4. Equipment s e i e : g
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to i
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and"
" Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. |, ; p e L2
. 5.{a) Suppfies - Educational ' 0ok St >
5.(b) Supplies - Lab P Gt e -0 hag DD ot Tl PR '$0
5.(c} Supplies - Pharmacy r ; 0. & " A e $1 500
5{d)_Supplies - Medical N T i s L 80w e 80
5.(e) "Supplies Offica R Y 4 L8480 [ L $4.2500] .""“.2'5'“*':"150 ’
6. Travel s VERT . n $11,400 [~ , B “$8,400 |- -
7. Software T L TR - 81,000 ) %, §1,000
8.-{a) Other - Marketing/ Communicatior] ) 5 D000 T T s 252,800 )., “r. - 82,000,
8. {b) Other - Education and Training : Y " $6,500- Nl CRET s * $4,000:
; 8. (c) Other - Other {specify below} B . =50
Insurances 3
Occupandy Costs .
Consumables i ' WU STED L ; )
Depreciation (Vehicles and Computers) [~ T3, - 847,800 -, T B . $47.800
v Telecommunication et t $8,000. R e . $8,000
Other Fees, Dues, Licenses etc. s v SR 52,0357 {r DI G et 580 1$2,035"
. 9. Subrecipient Cantraéts Tty : I T 1 $0°
--|Total Direct Costs CLE e T $1 742 684 e 3 $1 195 092 - $547 597
Total Indirect Costs 18174268 ] $119,509 |- ;;?;3543.7759:1
B | e P ($602,351)]
TOTAL 314,801 R s T, TR T g0
) a!i . i3
. N DS .,
. Contractor Initials:
. ©12/13/2023
- 55-2024-DBH-33-HOUSI-0L . " , ! . : Date:
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B Exhibit C-2, Budget
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services it .
« ) Compfete one budget form for each budget period.
Contractor Name:| e LB
Budget Request for:[:t iseigas gy 1 ol : ‘PAiHsEFrans tlon
Budget Period]:; ‘ ZmZé-ﬁfﬁG!Z'*ﬁ
= Indirect Cost Rate (if app!icable) £

= |1, Salary&Wages B LA f ] i 35, St
2. Fringe Benefits s g iH 32,108 {5 "gf;‘.."‘azzﬁ.'{& )
. 3. Consultants Pt 4152587 g i 200001 31 36,7008
s Equipment s 35 £ 25 - 1o EsITT

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 GFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) -Supplies - Educational

5.(b) Supplies~Lab .=*

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy.

5.{d) Supplies - Medical

’ 5.(e) Supplies Office =

6. Travel

s 7. Software” :
8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Commumcahon?
8. (b) Other - Education and Training
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Insurances

Occupancy Costs

Consumables £
Depreciation (Vehicles and Computers) |
Telecommunication -
Other Fees, Dues, Licenses elc.
9, Subrecipient Contracts

Total Direct Costs

-

Total Indirect Costs % 982 LT RN

Revent:!e Offset {(enter as negative)

%

W‘f}[&;ﬂﬂwg«w

®

$1:085,240 5o

TOTAL

3
» . -+

. . . 12/13/2023
$5-2024-DBH-33-HGUSI-01 . ! ol Date: "1/

| C
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¥

SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREé WORKPLACE REQUIRENE NTS?

The Contractor identified-in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to-comply with the provisions
of Sections §151-5160 of the Drug-Frée Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-890, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et'séq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Séotions
4.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing-Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages

7 21681-21691), and require certification by contractors {and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to

. award, that they will maintain a drug-fres workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that

a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification. or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarment; Contractors using this form should send it to:

‘Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street !
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing & statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition; : :

1.2. Establishing an-ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The Contractor’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Ay available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.24. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations oceurring
in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of th
Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); .

1.4. Notifying the employee. in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the Agreement, the employes will
1.4.1.  Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2.  Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in wiiting, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract -
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Ff—,fc;e?él .

¥

] B l w -
v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor’s Initials. s
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k.

agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall mclude the
identification number(s) of each.affected Agreement;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30-calendar days of recelving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent wnth the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
‘ amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to partlcnpate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other apprapriate agency,
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-fres workplace through implementation
of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6. .

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

Pface of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

¥

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here,

"

L%
B
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SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

l

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to'comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Pubhc Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,
and 31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES — CONTRAC;FORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS.

Programs (indiéate applicable program covered):

*Temporary Assistance to-Needy Families under Title [V-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title [V

The undersigned certifies, to the best. of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1.

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative-agreernent (and by
specific mention sub-contractor).

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attémpting to influsnce an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, {Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,
in accordance with its instructions, see https:/fomb.report/icr/201009-0348-022/doc/20388401

The undersigned shall require that the language Aof this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcorntracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is.a prerequisite for making or

-entering into this trarisaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails fo file

the required certification shall be subject to a civil penaity of not Iess than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure, -

v16/23 * Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
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t SECTION C: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
v RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS . .

5
»

The Contractor identified in Sectioh 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
* Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11'and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification: . »

]

¥

INSTRUCTIONS“FORECERTIFICATION ‘ .
’ 1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the
_ certification set out below. <

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The cértification or explanation will

* be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction. ' ) '

. " 3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
. when DHHS detérmined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default,

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
= whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
. . certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed -
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered fransaction,” "debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
" transaction,” “participant,” "person,” “primary covered transaction,” *principal;” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See
“ https:f/Www.govinfo.gov!app!detailsicFR-2004-titIe45-vol1ICFR-2004~title45-voi1-part?ﬁ!context.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
‘ covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this coveréd transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - .
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered.

~ transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, ar involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows. that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded partire}ns

|

hitps:/iwww.ecfr.gov/currentttitie-22/chapter-Vpart-513. v
. > . . Vi
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9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business deahngs

i |
10. Except for transactions authorized undér paragraph 6 of these mstruct;ons |f a part[clpant ina
. covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedzes available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate thls
transaction for cause or default.
PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective prlmary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and bellef that it and |ts
principals:
11.1. Arenot presently deharred, . suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
) - voluntarily excluded from covered fransactions by any Federal department or agency:;
. 11.2.  Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of
. or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
. in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
11.3.  Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(I{b) of this certification; and
11.4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this apptlcatlonlproposal had ‘ane or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.
- 12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this .
certification, such prospective partlmpant shall attach an explanation to this proposa! (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS )

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier -
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and
its principals:

13.1.  Are not presently debarred, suspended proposed for debarment declared ineligible, or
voluntartly excluded from partuctpation in this transaction by any federal department or
agency.

13.2.  Where the prospectwe lower tler participant is. unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (Agreement),

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this-proposai (Agreement) that it
will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tler covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

. Sy
i . 1%
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SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO__
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED .
ORGANIZATIONS, WH]STLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS, CLEAN AIR AND CLEAN WATER
ACT :

] 4 -

The C'o‘ntractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the .
Contractor's representative as idéntified in Sections 1.11 and'1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification: .

Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to.comply, with any applicable federal
nondiscrimination requirements, whlch may include:

1. The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which
prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
’practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan; . -

2. The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Secticn 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment prachces or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national otigin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan reguirements;

3. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
. assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity),” S

4. The Rehabllitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794)', whidh prohibits recipients of Federal
financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity, - ;

5. The Ameriéans with Diéabiliti'es Act of 1890 (42 U.8.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits _
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employme}nt, State and
lecal government services, public accommodations, commercia] facilities, and transpdrtation;

6. The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683 1685-86), whlch prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

7. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U).S.C. Sections 6108-07), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
_ employment discriminatior; ;

8. 28C.F.R.pt 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt”
: 42 (U.S. Depariment of Justice Regulations —Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures}, Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

8. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41.U.8.C. §4712 and The National Defense
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 201 3 {Pub. L. 112-239,-enacted January 2, 2orame Pilot

v1 623 J . * " ExhibitD * Contractor’s Initials 3&‘—‘2 2653
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- Program for Enhancement of Contréct Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whisfle blowmg activities in connectlon with federal grants

and contracts. . . - e e

10. The Clean Air Act (42 U.8.C. 7401-7671q. ) whtch seeks to protect human heaith and the
env;ronment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air.

11. The Clean Water Act (33 U.8.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating

* discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regu[atlng guality standards for surface

waters.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact Upon. whxch reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False cerfification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for

- suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or

debarment - . -

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State admlnlstratlve agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Departmént of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor. |denf|f ed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor’s representative as identified in Sect:ons 1.11 and 1.12 of the Generai Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting th|s Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
|nd|cated above. ] ‘ e

- R

e
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SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

- Public Law 103-227, Part C.- Environmental Tobacce Stmoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1884 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or lsased
: . or.contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care,
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the servicesare funded by Federal
. programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
- guarantee. The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facumes funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcchol
treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000.per day andlor the :mposmon of an admmlstratwe compliance order on
the responsible entlty .
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. - By signing and submitting th|3‘Agreernent the Contractor agrees to make reasonable afforts to
comply with all applicable prowsmns of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act '

of 1994
i
o s
- [§
" i
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SECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY

AND TRANSPARENGY ACT (FFATA[ COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires pnme awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30, 000 or
more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award -
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award. .

#

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensatlon Information),
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the foliowing mformatlon for any
sub award.or contract award subfect to the FFATA reporiing requirements:

1. Name of entlty Y
Amount of award

Funding agency

S N

NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

o,

Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the fundi'ng' action
Location of the entity

Prmclple place of perfon‘nance

@0 o NT-o

Unlque Entity Identifier (SAM UEI DUNS#)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1.  More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensatron information is not already available through reportlng to the SEC.
o  Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month; plus 30

‘ days, in which the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1 3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the prov;snons
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1. 11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the foliowmg Certification: _
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. .

Ly

e v w 3
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FORM A
o As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses o the
below listed questions are true and accurate. ) N

) ) , ‘ .. NE8XHAMHZGVE
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:__

2. [nyour business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
. organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
¢ more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,
andfor cooperative agreements? . . ‘

X _NO - __YES ~ S
If the answer to #2 above is NG, sfop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following: -

3. .Does the public have access to information about the compensation of thé executives in your
. ¥ business or crganization through periodic reports filed under section 13{a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867 ‘ . ) ¢

NO YES

: If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensaticn of the five most highlﬁ compensated officers in your busihess or
organization are as follows:

Name: - Amount:

Name: _ Amount; )
| Name; ) Arﬁount:
Name: _ Amount:
- Name: ___ : Amount:

. Contractér MName:

: \ DocuSigned by:
12/13/2023 EUM, wa,i

COOB3CENARADICE,..

Date: Name:Luke Reynard
. Title:  -0g bs
. ) . . - 1 1
v1 6/23 o7 ~ ExhibitD Contractor's [nitials L— -
' . Federal Requirements Date 1271372823

Page 10 of 10



Docusign Envelope ID; Bé798957-146C-4609-BBTB-8925DEF09F97
DocuSign Envelope ID; AAFBOEBY-SEVA-4B2C-A0AS-7B4E307740EC

’ New Hampshire Depaljtment of Health and Human Services
a j_ Exhibit E ‘
DHHS Information Security Requirements .

" A. Definitions T
The fol!owiﬁg terms may be refected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach” means the -loss of .confrol, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
" unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar. term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information, “ Breach”
shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” m section 164.402 of Title 45,

Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident” shall have the same. meaning “Computer Secunty
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-81, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and-Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
- Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Infarmation and

. Personally Identlt' able Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health-and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal faw or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information
(PF1), Federal Tax Information (FT1), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry {PCI), and or other sensmve and confidential information.

4, “End User” means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract. . -

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

8. “Incident’-means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a'system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss

R —D%
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or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
- s use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. “Open W:reless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the

3 State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for
" the transmission of unencrypted Pi, PFl, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information” (or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or. trace an individual’s identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric. records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.. ° ’

9. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Pri\;acy of Individually Identifiable Health .
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health information” {or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the -
definition of “Protected Health Informatlon in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C. F.R. §
160.103. '

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpar’t C, and amendments
thereto. .

»

12, “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information thatis
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

l. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contraétor musf ﬁot use, disclose, _majntain or transmit Corifidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a viclation

of the Privacy and Security Rule.
DS
' ‘ (X
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2. The Contractor must not dlsclose any Confidential Informatlon in response to a request:

for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,

without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to .

the disclosure.

3. If DHHS .notifies the Contractog‘ that DHHS has agreed to be botmd by additional

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, .the Contractor must be bound by such

additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

_ 4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5." The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for

any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees fo grant accessto the data to the authorized representatives of

-DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compiiance with the terms of this
Contract

IL. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

/5, Last update 10/09/18

1.

Application Encryption. If End User is fransmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said apphcatlons encryptlon

" capabilities.ensure secure transmission via the internet.

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage dewces such as a thumb- drwe as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if email

- Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of persons.-

authorlzed to receive such information.

Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the i

secure socket. layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a Web site. .

File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential Data.

Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground,
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual,

Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data
said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.
- D5
- ‘ (X
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8 Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Conf[dentlal Data vid an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmmlng via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private nétwork (VPN) must be installed on the End .
User's mobile device(s) or Iaptop from which mformatlon will be transmitted or accessed.

T 10. 88H File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End

- User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure the

Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disciosure of information, SFTP

+ folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours), .

: < 11, Wireless Devices, If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all "
data must be encrypted to prevent mappropnate dlsclosure of information.

+ Il. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

‘ The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
‘ Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have: 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract, To this end, the parties must: . : L

A, Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
-States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup.
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper secunty monitoring capabllities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
* Users in support of protecting Department confidential mformatron

- 4 The Contractor agrees fo retain all electronic and hard coptes of Conftdentla[ Data
in asecure Iocatlon and identified in section IV. A2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as
a whole must have aggressive mtrus:on detection and firewall protectlon

| | | | C |
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t 6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State’s
’ ) Chief Information Officer in the detectlon of any security vulnerablllty of the hostlng
- . infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. Ifthe Contractor will maintain any Confi dentlal Information on its systems (or its sub-
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
" disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and-will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic media contalnmg State of New
Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in -
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
) - sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
o as described in- NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
' been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be Jomtly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction. :

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3, Unless dtherwise spec:fled within thirty. (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
" Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data recelved under this Contract and any
derivative data or flles as follows:

1. The Contractor w1|| maintain proper security controls fo protect Department confi dehtlai
information collected, processed, managed, and/for stored in the delivery of . contracted
services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, {from creation,
transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to

store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
. B " BS
ol
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3. The Contracter will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls: to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential mformahon
where applicable. ‘

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect '
potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems. s

-5, The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End t_Jsers )
in support of pro_tecting Department confidential information,

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.,

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
. procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
. and maintaining actess to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
. and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compllance wnth the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the fife of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the

_ scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Centractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained from the Informatlon Security Office ieadershlp
member within the Department

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
. efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent

El
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future breach and minimize at;y damage br loss resulting from the breach. The State

12.

13.

shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

the breach, including but not limited to: credit' monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and te]ephone call center services necessary due to the

breach.

Contractor must, comply with all apphcab!e statutes and regulations regarding the .
privacy and security of Gonfidential Information, and must in ali other respects maintain
the privacy and security of Pl and PH] at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not limited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1674 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that

-govern protections for lndlwdually identifiable health information and. as applicable

under State law.

Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/iwww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/findex.htm for the

. Department of Information Technology policies, guidefines, standards, and

14.

15.

16.

procurement information-relating to vendors.

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response

process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officer and the State's Security

Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section

VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or

suspected breach which affects or inciudes any State of New Hampshlre systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract
to only those autharized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their offlc:al
- duties in connection with purposes identified in thls Contract.

The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

-a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is'furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times. _
c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media contamlng PHI, PI, or

PFl are encrypted and password- protected
—DS -
| | w
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o d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being sent *
\ to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to recelve such
information..

. 8. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information-to the extent permltted by faw.’

f.. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and

- technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

: ‘. g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, includmg any
- derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
- on portable media as required in section IV above. -

v . h. inall other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed -
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
-circumstances involved. -

i. understand that their user.credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor .is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other -
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is dlsposed
of in-accordance with this Confract.

V. LOSSREPORTING _ . S

The Contractor must notlfy the State's Privacy.Officer and Securlty Officer of any Securlty
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further hand]e and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency’s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification: .
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 308. In addition to, and -
“hotwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations ‘and procedures,
Confractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;
2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in incidents;
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

H
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4. Identify and converie a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and -
determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, ideﬁtify appropriate Breach,
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and .
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation méasures. .

Incidents and/or Breaches thatiimpli_cate Pl must be addressed and reported, as"applicable..-
in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.. - '

Vi. PERSONS TO CONTACT ‘
A. DHHS Privacy Officer: i
PHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.

» DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSlnformatibnSécurityOfﬁce@dhhs—.nh.gov.

DS "
Contractor Initials E
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. The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-=37)
: ("Agreement”), and any of its agents who receive use or have access to protected health
" information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the “Business Associate.” The State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, "Department” shall be referred
. to asthe "Covered Entlty,” The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as “the

parties.”

The parties agree to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
© Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title X!,
Subtitte D, Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC. 17934,
f et sec,, appllcable to business assoclates, and as ‘applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Conf identiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2, 42 CFR Part -
2, (Part 2}, as any of these laws and regutattons may be amended from time to ttme

(1~ Deflnltlons

a. The foIIowmg terms shall have the same meaning as defi ned in HIPAA, the HITEGH
‘Act, and Part 2, as they may be amended from time to time:

“Breach,” "Desngnated Record Set,” “Data Aggregation,” Designated Record
© Set,” "Health Care Operations,” "HITECH Act,” “Individual,” "Prwacy Rule ?
“Required by law,” “Secunty Rule,” and “Secretary.” :

b. - Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement -
. that includes-privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate
, working with PHI and as applicable, Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity
) under the Agreement

c. "Constructive[y Identifiable,” méans there is a reasonabte basis to believe that the
information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an antrclpated reclplent to identify an individual who is a subject of
the information.

d.  “Protected Health Informatlon" ("PH[") as used in the Agreement and the BAA,
means protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to
_ the information created, received, or used by Business Assoclate from or on behalf

of Covered.Entity, and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below. °

€. “Part 2 record” means any patient "Record,” relating to a “Patient,” and “Patient
!dentlfymg Information,” as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

~f. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that
is not secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information '
unusable, -unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited
by the American National Standards [nstitute.

(2)  Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

- a, - Business Associaté shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected
Heaith Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services
outhned under.the Agreement. Further, Busmess Associate, including bf‘t

Exhibit F
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) limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and agents, shall protect'any PHI as
‘ o ‘required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or
’ transmit PHi in any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or.42 CFR
Part 2.

b. . BusmesslAssociate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II.  Asrequired by law, according to the terms set forth in paragraph ¢. and d. below;
ill. According to thé HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

IV. For data aggrégation purposes for the health care operations of the Covered
. : . Entity; and '

V. Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement,

. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
- disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other
v . agreement with the third party or subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and
ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included in those business associate -
agreements with the third party or subcontractor

The Business Assomate shall not, disclase any PHI in response to a request or
demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it

is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure,
the Business Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI and shall )
cooperate with the Covered Entity ih any effort the Covered Entity undertakes to .

) contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal process. If applicable
- relating to Part 2 records, the Business Associate shall resist any efforts to access

) part 2 records in any judicial proceeding. ’

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

2. . Business Associate shall implement approprlate safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI In accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule -
and Security Rule with regard to electronic _PHI and Part 2, as applicable.

b.  The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity's Privacy
Officer at the following email address, DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov after the
Business Associate has determined that any use or disclosure not provided for by
its contract, including any known or suspected privacy or security incident or breach
has occurred potentially exposing or compromising the PHI. This includes
inadvertent or accidental uses or disclosures or breaches of unsecured protected
health information. . ,

o

o

¥

¢. Inthe event of a breach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws and,
. regulations and any additional requirements of the Agreement. .

d. The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, hased on the information
available at the time it becomes aware of any known or suspected priyﬁ@r

- Exhibit F
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security breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

I. The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, rncludlng the

* - types.of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

IIl. The unauthorized person who accessed used, disclosed, or recerved the
protected health information;

. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed; and

V. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
has been mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the concldsion

-of its incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a written report to

the Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate's investigation

Business Asscciate shall make -available all of its internal policies and procedures,
books and records relafing to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to.the
US Secretary of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the
Business Associate’s and the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the .
Privacy and Security Rule, and Part.2, if applicable. '

_ Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or

have access to PHI under the BAA fo agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the'use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.

Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices
all records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and
disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for-purposes of enabling Covered Entity to
determine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the BAA and the

" Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entrty,

.Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the

Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet
the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated
Record Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered
Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered
Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related
to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request
by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PH! in aocordance with 45 CFR
Section 164. 528

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written‘ request from Covered Entity for

a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHi, Business Associate shall make

available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill

its obligations to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to- H “in
» ' Exhibit F LR
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accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

‘m.  Inthe event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within five (5)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have
the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the

. Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA-and the Privacy and. Security Rule, the Business
Associate shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law
and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. .

n.  Within thirty (30) business days of termination’ of the Agreement, for any reason,.
" the Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all
PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate in connection
with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back—ups of such PHlin any

form or platform.

VI.  Ifreturn or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
. otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, or if retention is governed by. state
or federal law, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to suich PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
- PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible for as
. . long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its
" sole discrétion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PH,
the Business Associate shall certlfy to Covered Entity that the PHI has been
destroyed. _—

(4).. Obligations of Covered Entity

.a. Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the Privacy Practices
on the Covered Entity’s website:

https fiwww.dhhs.nh. gov/oos/hipaa/publications. htm in accordance with 46 CFR
Section 164.520. -

b. . Covered Entlty shall promptly notlfy Busmess Associate of any changes in, or
revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may
be used or disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFR

’ Sectlon 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c.” Covered entity shall promptly notify Busmess Associate of any restrictions on the
use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45
- CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s -
.use or disclosure of PHI.

(5) Iermination of Agreement for Cause

a.  In addition fo the.General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement the Covered Entity -
_may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a
material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The
Covered Entity may either immediately terminate theé Agreement or provide an
opportunity for Business Associate to cure-the alleged breach within a timeframe
specified by Covered Entlty

(6) Miscellaneous
T a Deflmtlons Laws and Regulatory -References. All laws and regulations [usf’}zzﬁ
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herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A

reference in the Agreement as amended to include this Business Associate -

Agreement, to a Section in HIPAA.or.42.Part 2, means the Sectlon as in effect or
as amended.

Change in law - Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action
as is necessary from time to time for.the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate

- to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 other
" applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership- The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership

“rights with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation - The parties agfee that any ambiguity in the BAA and the

' Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Busmess Associate

to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2. .
Segregation - If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any

* person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms

or conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this
end the terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable. '

Survival -
or destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) g. and
(3) n.l., and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
(P-S?) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA.

Prov151ons in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI retum'

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate

Agreement.

Department of Health and Human Services

NFI North Inc

The State Name of the Contractor .
DocuSigned by: DocuSigned by:
Ketjs S. Fox (Wt Regnard .
S mm - IS

Signature of Authorized Representative

Katja.Fox@dhhs.nh.gov

Signature of Authorized Representative

LukeReynard@nafi.com

Name of Authorized Represehtative

Director

Namie of Authorized Representative

- QOO0

Title of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

12/13/2023 12/13/2023
Date . Date —bs '
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